
FOUNTAINDALE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

December 17, 2020 | 7 p.m. 
300 West Briarcliff Road | Bolingbrook  

Zoom Online Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82296360291 

Phone Number: 1 312 626 6799    Meeting ID: 822 9636 0291 
 
Pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Orders, the Governor has made a disaster declaration in response to 
COVID-19. In accordance with 5 ILCS 120/7(e), the head of the public body has determined that an in-
person meeting of all of the individual Board members under the Open Meetings Act is not practical or 
prudent. Per the statutory requirements, at least one member of the body or chief administrative officer will 
be physically present, unless unfeasible.  Further, physical attendance at the regular meeting location by the 
public is not feasible. Therefore, the meeting will be held virtually with contemporaneous attendance 
available for members of the public by the Zoom platform. Public comments can be emailed directly to the 
Executive Director, Paul Mills as pmills@fountaindale.org. Please note that comments provided via email 
must be received at least two hours before the Board meeting is scheduled to begin. A board representative 
may read comments submitted via email or it may be entered into the record. 

 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call of Trustees 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Approval of Agenda 
4. Minutes for Approval 

a. Board Meeting – November 19, 2020 
5. Comments from the Public 
6. Friends of the Library 
7. New Business – Action Items 

a. Approval of Merit Increase and Minimum Wage Adjustments for Fiscal Year 2021 
b. Approval of Resolution 2020-9 – Resolution Approving Service Agreement Between 

Sourcewell and Fountaindale Public Library District 
c. Approval of 2021 Per Capita Grant Application 

8. Library Projects 
9. Correspondence 
10. Treasurer’s Report 
11. Bills for Approval 

a. Bills Paid Report – December, 2020 
b. Bills Payable Report – December, 2020 

12. Director’s Report – November, 2020 
13. Unfinished Business 

a. Final Approval of Request for Trustees to Attend 2021 American Library Association 
Midwinter Meeting Virtual Conference – January 22-26, 2021 

14. Reports 
a. Building  
b. Finance  
c. Strategic  
d. Personnel  

15. Announcements 
16. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 

For further information regarding this meeting agenda, please contact: 
Paul Mills, Executive Director | Fountaindale Public Library District 

(630) 685-4157 | pmills@fountaindale.org 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82296360291
mailto:pmills@fountaindale.org
mailto:pmills@fountaindale.org


 

December 2020 Agenda Background 
Paul Mills 

 

7. New Business – Action Items 
 
 

a. Approval of Merit Increase and Minimum Wage Adjustments for Fiscal 
Year 2021 
 
Please see the memo include in the Board Packet for information 
regarding this recommendation. 
 
Suggested Motion:  Motion to approve a standard merit increase of 85 
cents per hour to $1.00 per hour for Fiscal Year 2021 and to approve a 
standard merit bonus of 85 cents per hour to $1.00 per hour, for Fiscal 
Year 2021 for staff at or over their position’s maximum salary.  
 
The level of the merit increase and the merit bonus require reaching the 
appropriate score in the performance evaluation system in order to be 
granted. 

 
 

b. Approval of Resolution 2020-9 – Resolution Approving Service Agreement 
Between Sourcewell And Fountaindale Public Library District 
 
Sourcewell is an organization that competitively solicits contracts for 
services and products.  Joining Sourcewell will give us access to their 
contracts and potentially save us time and money.  Over 50,000 
government, education, and nonprofit organizations participate in 
Sourcewell.  There are no fees to use Sourcewell's contracts, no 
commitment, and no obligation to purchase. 

 
Suggested Motion:  Motion to approve Resolution 2020-9 – Resolution 
Approving Service Agreement Between Sourcewell And Fountaindale 
Public Library District. 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 
c. Approval of 2021 Per Capita Grant Application 

 
The 2021 Illinois Per Capita Grant Application is complete.  This year the 
application is focused exclusively on Serving Our Public 4.0, and it is my 
understanding that this is the planned format for all future per capita grant 
applications as well.  As noted in the review earlier this year, the District 
meets all of the checklist items. 
 
Suggested Motion:  Motion to approve the 2020 Illinois Per Capita Grant 
Application. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Board Meeting: November 19, 2020  1  

                                       MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF 
 THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
 THE FOUNTAINDALE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
 WILL AND DUPAGE COUNTIES, ILLINOIS  
 HELD NOVEMBER 19, 2020 
 BOLINGBROOK, ILLINOIS 
 
 
A meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Fountaindale Public Library District, Will and DuPage 
Counties, Illinois was held at the Bolingbrook Library, 300 West Briarcliff Road, Bolingbrook, 
IL 60440, Thursday, November 19, 2020 at 7 p.m. 
 
Pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Orders, the Governor has made a disaster declaration in 
response to COVID-19. In accordance with 5 ILCS 120/7(e), the head of the public body has 
determined that an in-person meeting of all of the individual Board members under the Open 
Meetings Act is not practical or prudent. At least one board member will attend in person.  
Members of the public may continue to attend the meeting in-person or virtually. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7 p.m. by President Margaret (Peggy) Danhof. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
The roll was called by recorder, Juanita Lennon, and a quorum was established.   
 
PRESENT 
 
Present at roll call were Steven Prodehl, Kathryn Spindel, Marcelo Valencia and Margaret 
(Peggy) Danhof. 
 
Trustees Robert Kalnicky, Ruth Newell and Celeste Bermejo were present online via Zoom. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None.  
 
FOUNTAINDALE STAFF PRESENT 
 
The following staff was present: Paul Mills and Juanita Lennon. 
 
Jeffrey Fisher, Nancy Korczak, Joe Crookham, John Hodur, Lea Pottle, Amina Ali, Tasos 
Priovolos, Dennis Raleigh and Joyce Arellano were present online via Zoom.  
 
PUBLIC PRESENT 
 
Jody Hargett, Sam and Marley were present online via Zoom.  



Board Meeting: November 19, 2020  2  

AGENDA APPROVAL 
 
Following the Pledge of Allegiance, Danhof asked for a motion to approve the agenda. A motion 
was made by Spindel, seconded by Newell.  
 

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETING – October 15, 2020 
 
The minutes of the board meeting held October 15, 2020 were presented. A motion to approve 
the minutes was made by Spindel, seconded by Valencia. Minutes were approved as read.  
 

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 
 
President Danhof recognized John Hodur for his five years of service and presented him with a 
certificate and keychain. Danhof also recognized Joseph Crookham for his five years of service 
with certificate and keychain.  
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
No comments were made.  
 
FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY 
 
Jody Hargett reported that the Friends are keeping the Nook stocked with holiday books. The 
Friends wrote a letter to include in the new time capsule. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Approval of Ordinance 2020-3 Tax Levy Ordinance 
 
The Board discussed the levy.  Trustee Prodehl expressed concerns about it. 
 
A motion to approve Ordinance 2020-3 Tax Levy Ordinance was made by Spindel, seconded by 
Newell.  
 

AYES:  Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: Prodehl 
ABSENT: None 
 



Board Meeting: November 19, 2020  3  

Approval of Ordinance 2020-4 – An Ordinance Authorizing Certain Appropriation Transfers in 
the Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Budget and Appropriation Ordinance Pursuant to Section 30-90 of the 
Public Library District Act 
 
A discussion of the capital projects that this ordinance will provide funding for ensued. 
 
A motion to approve Ordinance 2020-4 – An Ordinance authorizing certain appropriation 
transfers in the Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Budget and Appropriation Ordinance pursuant to Section 
30-90 of the Public Library District Act was made by Spindel, seconded by Kalnicky.  
 

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
Approval of Resolution 2020-8 – Resolution Regarding the Issuance of Non-Resident Library Cards 
 
A discussion of the non-resident card fee noted that it would be $572.37. 
 
A motion to approve Resolution 2020-8 – Resolution regarding the issuance of non-resident 
library cards was made by Kalnicky, seconded by Spindel.  
 

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
Approval of Statement of Receipts and Disbursements Fiscal Year 2019/2020 
 
A motion to approve the Statement of Receipts and Disbursements Fiscal Year 2019/2020 was 
made by Spindel, seconded by Valencia.  
 

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
Approval of Certified List of Trustees and Staff for Filing with Will and DuPage Counties for 
Statement of Economic Interest 
 
A motion to approve the certified list of Trustees and staff for filing with Will and DuPage 
Counties for the Statement of Economic Interest was made by Spindel, seconded by Prodehl.  
 

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
 
 
 



Board Meeting: November 19, 2020  4  

Review of Serving Our Public 4.0 
 
The 2021 Illinois Per Capita Grant requires that the Boards of public libraries review Serving 
Our Public 4.0.  
 
The management team reviewed the Serving Our Public 4.0 chapter checklists and found that the 
library does meet the suggested requirements. The completed checklist was included in the 
Board Packet. 
 
LIBRARY PROJECTS 
 
Mills discussed that upcoming projects will include the ones mentioned in the ordinance that the 
Board approved this evening. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
The Board received a letter from Toni Greathouse. 
 
TREASURER'S REPORT 
 
The Treasurer's Report for October, 2020 was presented by Treasurer Spindel and will be filed 
for audit. 
 
BILLS FOR APPROVAL   
 
Bills Paid Report – November, 2020 
 
Bills paid for the month of November in the amount of $56,031.20 was presented for approval. 
Motion to approve was made by Spindel, seconded by Valencia.  

 
AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
 

Bills Payable Report – November, 2020 
 
Bills payable for the month of November in the amount of $230,296.30 was presented for 
approval.  Motion to approve was made by Newell, seconded by Kalnicky.  
     

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
 
 



Board Meeting: November 19, 2020  5  

DIRECTOR'S REPORT – October, 2020 
 
Mills reported that the new Illinois Tier 3 Mitigations will begin tomorrow, November 20.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
None.  
 
REPORTS 
 
Building – None.  
 
Finance – None. 
 
Strategic Plan – None.  
 
Personnel – None. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Trustee Newell invited everyone to the virtual Thanksgiving Service hosted by the Bolingbrook 
Christian Clergy Association on Tuesday, November 24.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:38 p.m. was made by Prodehl, seconded by Valencia.  
 

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
 
 

Approved:                                                                
     Steven J. Prodehl, Secretary 

 
____________________________________ 
Margaret J. (Peggy) Danhof, President 
 
 
 



Date:  December 17, 2020 
From:  Paul D. Mills 
To:  Board of Trustees 
Subj:  Merit Increase and Minimum Wage Memo for Fiscal Year 2021 
 
 
The District’s base starting salary is currently $11.00 per hour. This was instituted 7/1/2020 so 
that the District would be compliant with the State of Illinois’ minimum wage regulations as of 
1/1/2021.   
 
The chart below shows the annual increases to the minimum wage that must be met over the 
next five years: 
  January 2021 $11.00 
  January 2022 $12.00 
  January 2023 $13.00 
  January 2024 $14.00 
  January 2025 $15.00 

 
This year our staff has done an excellent job serving our community during a pandemic.  Our 
revenue has reached a point where we do have the ability to give merit increases, which was a 
significant unknown at the beginning of the fiscal year.  
 
To maintain the appropriate separation of pay grades on the District’s salary structure, and to 
remain competitive for recruiting purposes, it is recommended that current staff continue to be 
evaluated annually and those eligible for merit increases receive pay adjustments upon their 
anniversary date. Should the anniversary date have passed, pay adjustments will be made 
retroactive to July 1, 2020 as appropriate.  
 
For the fiscal year 2020-2021, based upon overall performance evaluation scores, merit 
increases will generally be awarded in the amounts of 85 cents per hour to $1.00 per hour if this 
is approved.  The cost would be $215,000. 
   
It is possible for staff members to earn more or less than these amounts depending upon their 
evaluation score. 
 
It is also recommended that staff who are over their maximum salary be eligible for a merit 
bonus, equivalent to the merit increase earned, as listed above. It is possible for staff members 
to earn more or less than this standard bonus amount depending upon their evaluation. This 
bonus would not be added to their salary. 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 2020-9 
RESOLUTION APPROVING SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN SOURCEWELL AND  

FOUNTAINDALE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT  
 
 WHEREAS, the Fountaindale Public Library District, Will County, Illinois, is a public body 

created and existing under the laws of the State of Illinois; and 

 WHEREAS, the Library District derives its rights, power and authority from the various sections 

of the Library District Code (the “Code”); and  

 WHEREAS, the Board of Fountaindale Public Library District believes, and hereby declares, 

that it is in the best interest of Fountaindale Public Library District and its residents to approve the 

Service Agreement, which Service Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and made a part hereof;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF FOUNTAINDALE PUBLIC LIBRARY 

DISTRICT, WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 SECTION ONE:  The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby adopted as findings of 

fact as if said recitals were fully set forth within this Section One.  

 SECTION TWO:  The Service Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 1 shall be and is 

hereby approved, and the President shall be and is hereby authorized to accept and execute said 

Service Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto. 

 SECTION THREE:  Any policy or resolution of Fountaindale Public Library District which 

conflicts with the provisions of this resolution shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict.  

SECTION FOUR: This resolution shall take effect upon its passage and approval in the 

manner provided by law. 

 

 



 2 

PASSED THIS 17th day of December, 2020. 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED THIS 17th day of December, 2020. 

 

____________________________________ 
Margaret J. (Peggy) Danhof 
President, Board of Library Trustees 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Steven J. Prodehl 
Secretary, Board of Library Trustees 
 
 



SOURCEWELL AGREEMENT 

This Agreement, made effective on the date hereof, by and between Sourcewell (formerly known as National Joint Powers 

Alliance) and _________________________________ (hereinafter referred to as the "Member").   

Agreement   

1. Sourcewell, a public entity whose creation was authorized by Minn. Stat. § 123A.21, has followed procurement
procedures for products and services offered by this Agreement in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 471.345. Sourcewell
is permitted to engage in cooperative purchasing pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 123A.21 Subd. 7(23).

2. It is the sole responsibility of each Member to follow state and local procurement statutes and rules as it pertains to
cooperative purchasing or joint power Agreements with in-state or out-of-state public agencies.

3. Sourcewell makes cooperative purchasing contracts available to Members "as is," and is under no obligation to revise
the terms, conditions, scope, price, and/or any other conditions of the contract for the benefit of the Member.
Members are permitted to negotiate and agree to additional terms and conditions with Vendors directly.

4. Each party shall be responsible for its acts and the results thereof, to the extent authorized by law, and will not be
responsible for the acts of the other party and the results thereof. The Member will be responsible for all aspects of
its purchase, including ordering its goods and/or services, inspecting and accepting the goods and/or services, and
paying the Vendor who will have directly billed the Member placing the order.

5. The use of each contract by the Member will adhere to the terms and conditions of the Sourcewell contract.

6. Any dispute which may arise between the Member and the Vendor are to be resolved between the Member and the
Vendor.

7. This Agreement incorporates all Agreements, covenants and understandings between Sourcewell and the Member.
No prior Agreement or understanding, verbal or otherwise, by the parties or their agents, shall be valid or
enforceable unless embodied in this Agreement. This Agreement shall not be altered, changed or amended except by
written amendment executed by both parties.

Its  __________________________________________ 
TITLE 

______________________________________ 
TITLE 

     __________________________________________________________ 
DATE 

_____________________________________________________  
DATE 

Rev. 5/2018 

Member Name Sourcewell 

By  _________________________________________   ______________________________________ 



MEMBER INFORMATION  
Indicate an address to which correspondence may be delivered. 

Organization Name*    _______________________________________ 

Address*   _______________________________________   

City  _______________________________________ 

State/Province Code    ___________________ ZIP code*__________ 

Country _______________________________________ 

Employer Identification Number   _______________________________________ 

Website        ______________________________________ 

Contact person*  (First, Last) 
_______________________________________ 

Job Title*       _______________________________________ 

Job Role*       _______________________________________  

E-mail*   _______________________________________ 

Phone*    _______________________________________ 

Organization Type: 
Government 

__ Federal

__ State

__ County

__ Municipality

__ Tribal

__ Township

__ Special District

Education 
__ Pre-K

__ Public K-12

__ Private K-12

__ Public Higher Ed

__ Private Higher Ed



Non-Profit (Please include documentation demonstrating non-profit status) 

__ Church

__ Medical Facility

__ Other

REFERRED BY 
__ Advertisement 

__ Colleague/Friend   

__ Vendor Representative  

__ Conference/Trade Show____________________________________________ 

__ Search Engine/Web Search  

RETURN COMPLETED AGREEMENT TO: 

Sourcewell  
202 12th Street NE   
P.O. Box 219 
Staples, MN 56479 

877-585-9706
membership@sourcewell-mn.gov

*Denotes required information

mailto:membership@sourcewell-mn.gov








































































November 2020 Monthly Board Report 
Paul Mills 
 
 
Director 
 
LIRA Update 
 
The Libraries of Illinois Risk Agency (LIRA) met in November to review and approve the 
insurance renewal for the 58 members of LIRA.  Gallagher notified us in the Spring that this 
would be a difficult market for our renewal, and to prepare for up to a 35% increase in our costs.  
Property and excess liability seem to be the hardest hit markets.  Wildfires, hurricanes, 
unprecedented flooding and wind/hail (Convective Storms) continue to become more frequent 
and more devastating across the country.  One of our LIRA members experienced a property 
loss of more than $2 million this year. 
 
Gallagher did an excellent job presenting to carriers that libraries are safe environments, and 
our pool’s overall increase was just under 20%.   
 
RAILS Update 
 
RAILS (the Reaching Across Illinois Library System) provided an update from the Illinois State 
Library regarding legislation that was recently passed.  The rules are currently in the public 
comment phase and it is expected that final rules will be released in March 2021. 
 
There are three areas regarding library services that have been changed by recent legislation – 
 

1. Public Library Boards of Trustees may annually take action to offer non-residents access 
to E-Resources free of charge. 

2. Non-Resident Fees shall not apply to veterans with a service-connected disability of at 
least 70% who are exempt from paying property taxes on their primary residence. 

3. Non-Resident Fees shall not apply to a student whose principal address is not within a 
public library service area and who is eligible to receive free or reduced price lunches. 

 
Bookmobile Update 
 
We recently agreed to several modifications to our new bookmobile which we will be receiving  
next year.  These three changes are all designed with safety for our staff and patrons in mind. 
 
Our new vehicle will now include 
 

- Two hand sanitizer dispenser fixtures 
- Four sneeze guards for the staff desks on the vehicle (two of them will be spares) 
- Pro-Air HEPA-3 Air Filtration Unit 

 
We will also be receiving additional training beyond what had been specified in the original 
agreement. 
 
All of these items will be at no cost to the District and were negotiated with Summit, our vendor. 
 



Deputy Director (Nancy Korczak) 
 
During the month of November Public Service staff did an excellent job at adapting to the new  
mitigation measures the library is currently under. Staff have been great at communicating to patrons 
what their options are in terms of service and have been proactive about offering to place items and 
printouts at the drive-thru.  
 
This month we have rolled out two new services that have helped our patrons maintain social distance. 
We first rolled out an update to our Fountaindale app which allows patrons to scan barcodes with their 
camera and check out items through their phone. Our Communications team helped coordinate the 
effort and worked on promoting it on social media.   
 
Our Circulation Manager and I also worked closely with Communications to roll out auto renewal of 
library cards for our patrons. So far the auto-renewal of library cards has been going well and 3-7 
patrons get auto-renewed daily. Patrons are notified via email about their renewal and are invited to use 
their card to access library service. 
 
 
From Joyce Arellano’s report 

Children’s Services 

Monthly Overview of Children’s Services: 
 
The last days of early voting continued to bring in visitors. We extended 
the IL Secretary of State’s Annual Family Reading Night to a week long 
celebration with activities that encouraged families to read together. We 
also launched a brand new program, Let’s Be Pen Pals, as well as a 
new, highly anticipated service, Tween Book Box. The Winter Reading 
Program kicked off on November 30, and we received a wonderful 
sponsorship from one of our community partners. 
 

 
PROGRAMMING 

ARTS & CRAFTS 

 
ACTIVIDADES PARA NIÑOS (YouTube) 

 Pavo con Conodepiño  https://youtu.be/lV0BhpYzoH8 
 Flores de Papel https://youtu.be/UaewEbab6Js 

Andreea presented two fun and simple craft projects in Spanish: a pinecone turkey and paper flowers. 
 
ARTS & FABLES (YouTube, 30 kits) 
Kathy shared a book and a song for Thanksgiving, and Debbie showed viewers how to make a lovely 
“Thankful” banner for the holiday. 
 
CREATION STATION WITH MISS JEN: Thumbprint Creations 
(YouTube) 
https://youtu.be/P9vXylCOoE4 
“For this month’s Creation Station, I showed how to create art by 
using thumbprints. I started with some basic techniques, showing 
how to make faces, add illusion of movement, how to make designs 
with multiple prints and colors. Then I created two different scenes. 
The first was a ‘bug collection’ and the second was an underwater 
scene.” Jen F. 

https://youtu.be/lV0BhpYzoH8
https://youtu.be/UaewEbab6Js
https://youtu.be/P9vXylCOoE4


LET’S CREATE: Thanksgiving Cornucopia (YouTube) 
https://youtu.be/pMl80cL8fZw 
“This was a little more complicated to paint so I decided to use colored pencils. I was able to show them 
some blending techniques and a little bit of shading to show the curve of the cornucopia. I had some 
feedback from a few viewers who really enjoyed the video.”Chris Z. 
 

 

 

 
LET’S DRAW: Abstract Drawing (YouTube) 
https://youtu.be/keuyco6Q0-c 
“Piet Mondrian is one of my favorite artists. I loved 
being able to tell a little about him and how the kids 
can create their own.” Chris Z. 
 

 

TAKE-IT MAKE-IT (560) 
Children made more fun crafts this month. Parents and caregivers also expressed their gratitude for 
these projects. A mother of 3 who is working from home in addition to managing at-home learning for 
her children said, “These craft kits are a lifesaver! My kids love them. I love them, too. They allow me to 
have some time to myself!” 
 

 
 

Craft Video # of KitsTaken 

Koala Bear https://youtu.be/WZj2QozCAR8  35 

Tissue Paper Sun Catcher https://youtu.be/PL8wMJ8q4ek  75 

Fall Windsock https://youtu.be/L2bQQ98yREA  35 

Paper Fox https://youtu.be/eNi3pX7d1Dg  70 

Paper Snail https://youtu.be/pdEWY0CMrn4  72 

Paper Plate Rainbow Fish https://youtu.be/2ih-XuWjdAU 75 

Turkey Ornament https://youtu.be/MPMrqqYCDuA  36 

Turkey https://youtu.be/j3YUoM8j_S0 75 

Handprint Hedgehog https://youtu.be/n6I7KHUcm5M 15 

Jellyfish 
 

33 

https://youtu.be/pMl80cL8fZw
https://youtu.be/keuyco6Q0-c
https://youtu.be/WZj2QozCAR8
https://youtu.be/PL8wMJ8q4ek
https://youtu.be/L2bQQ98yREA
https://youtu.be/eNi3pX7d1Dg
https://youtu.be/pdEWY0CMrn4
https://youtu.be/2ih-XuWjdAU
https://youtu.be/MPMrqqYCDuA
https://youtu.be/j3YUoM8j_S0
https://youtu.be/n6I7KHUcm5M


Basket Weave 
 

13 

Fruit Basket 
 

7 

Penguin Puppet 
 

14 

Snowman 
 

5 
 

TOTAL 560 

 

 
 
READING, WRITING & PUBLISHING 
LET’S BE PEN PALS (2) 

Our newest program aims to maintain relationships with families and help children practice their reading 
and writing skills. Children can write letters, place them in the mailbox in front of the Children’s Services 
Desk and receive a response from a CSD or Outreach staff member. This month we received 2 letters. 

  
 
JUST FOR TWEENS 
 
GRAPHIC NOVEL BOOK CLUB 



 Drawing & Writing https://youtu.be/8tL8vK9w038 
 Finishing Touches https://youtu.be/lNBMwbRKMRo 

Parts 2 & 3 of this series aired in November. For part 2, “I showed them how to draw some characters 
and how to plot them out. I didn’t focus so much on the coloring and the aesthetics of it. I figured I would 
save that component for part 3 of the series.” Melisa M. 

 

 

 
TWEEN DIY: Taco Earbud Holder (20) 
Tweens made a fun and easy-to-make taco-shaped pouch to 
hold their earbuds.  
 

 

 
MOVIES, MUSIC & ENTERTAINMENT 
 

MINI MOVIN’ & GROOVIN’ (YouTube)  
https://youtu.be/KgNrA_v44yI 
 
SESAME STREET AT-HOME CELEBRATION (YouTube, 45 kits) 
https://youtu.be/DLuNAqIfxbc 
“This program came about because we found a lot of extra craft supplies when we were cleaning out. 
Since there were quite a few supplies left, we decided to make it one huge take-home kit. I thought this 
would be a great way to have families help their children work on matching skills and one-to-one 
correspondence. The kits were all taken by day three!” Jen F. 

 
STEAM & LEARNING FUN 
 
ADVENTURES IN HOMESCHOOLING: Great Britain 
(YouTube, 35 kits) 
https://youtu.be/vKimBPXZYU4 
This month, Kathy and Debbie took homeschoolers on a 
virtual trip to Great Britain. Children also picked up kits to 
create a London Eye ferris wheel string art craft. 
 
MINI MATH KIT: Balancing Scale (YouTube, 20 kits) 
https://youtu.be/T9aSqXvrPdQ 

“This month’s Mini Math was on weight comparison. We demonstrated this with a balancing scale and 
talked about how this is different from measuring the weight of an item. We also showed how items can 
be deceiving, even equal looking in shape and 
size can weigh totally different from each other. 
Then we showed them how to make and use 
their own balancing scale with the materials in 
the kit.” Susan F. 
 
LIVE ROOTS: Langston Hughes & Shirley 
Chisholm (Zoom Webinar, 7 attendees)  
https://youtu.be/lX2x7voJTrA 
Judith and Ernie offered another great 
presentation. This month they focused on the 
first African American woman elected to 
Congress, Shirley Chisholm and poet Langston 
Hughes. 

https://youtu.be/8tL8vK9w038
https://youtu.be/lNBMwbRKMRo
https://youtu.be/KgNrA_v44yI
https://youtu.be/DLuNAqIfxbc
https://youtu.be/vKimBPXZYU4
https://youtu.be/T9aSqXvrPdQ
https://youtu.be/lX2x7voJTrA


STEM CREATIONS: Articulated Hand (YouTube) 
https://youtu.be/nDbxx63_x90 
“This is a fun activity that teaches kids about the anatomy of a 
hand and engineering. It uses simple materials on hand like 
foam sheets, straws and plastic string. The straws represent 
the bones in a hand. The strings act like tendons and pull and 
move the fingers. To make the video more interactive, I 
involved one of our young patrons who was studying at the 
library with her sisters. She volunteered to show her hands for 
the explanation.” Andreea D. 
 

 
GAMING & PLAY 
 
ANIMAL CROSSING ESCAPE ROOM (Google Form, 4 participants) 
https://www.fountaindale.org/2020/05/05/virtual-animal-crossing-escape-room/ 
 

 
FAMILY READING NIGHT TRIVIA (Zoom, 9)  
“The trivia game was the big hit of Family Reading Week. 9 
children participated in the game and had the time of their 
life. Most of them knew their Piggie & Elephant, Dog Man, 
and Arthur books pretty well. The first place winner was so 
excited about winning that she ran to the library to retrieve 
her prize (luckily, she lived down the block.)” Marta M. 
 
STORYTIMES  
 
We offered these pre-recorded storytimes. Videos were 
available to patrons for 24 hours. 

 Family Storytime with Miss Rosemary 
 Sensory Storytime 
 All Together Storytime with Miss Chris 
 Diez Deditos (2 videos) 
 Family Reading Week Storytime 
 Family Storytime with Miss Susan 

 

 
FAMILY READING WEEK STORYTIME (YouTube) 
Families were treated to a special storytime featuring special guest readers. A big thank you to Paul 
(and Angel), Nancy and John Hopkins for lending their storytime talents to this video. “The Family 
Reading Night Storytime was also a big hit. John Hopkins said to me that his son was very surprised to 
see ‘daddy on the TV.’ His son also recognized Miss Joyce in the video and pointed to her on the screen 
and said ‘she library.’ He was able to make that connection, which is amazing!” Marta M. 
 
LIVE STORYTIME (Zoom, 3 programs, 33 attendance) 
During LIVE Storytime on the day before Thanksgiving, Marta and Melisa turned on the attendee 
microphones so children could share what they were thankful for. One little girl shared that she was 
thankful for the library.  

https://youtu.be/nDbxx63_x90
https://www.fountaindale.org/2020/05/05/virtual-animal-crossing-escape-room/


SENSORY STORYTIME (YouTube) 
https://youtu.be/O5SusWHoovE  
“In this storytime, I read a nonfiction book that 
had great information about autumn, but there 
were several pages about how autumn feels, 
tastes, sounds and looks. Marta and I then went 
to the park across the street to do a fall 
scavenger hunt. Our finale of the storytime was a 
fall colors tour of the United States and Canada. 
I had friends of mine send me pictures that they 
took of the colors in their states, and I put them 
together for a beautiful montage.” Jen F. 

 
READING PROGRAMS 
 
1000 BOOKS BEFORE KINDERGARTEN (357) 
3 new children signed up for the program, and 1 child completed the program! There are currently 357 
active participants. 
 
WINTER READING PROGRAM 
The Winter Reading Program began on November 30. This 
year’s reading log is a Bingo card. We are so grateful to The 
Third Institute for sponsoring the program this year. The 
organization donated 125 prize books featuring diverse 
characters. 

 
PUBLIC SERVICE 
This month we answered 803 reference questions and 314 directional questions. We also assisted with 
26 one-on-one appointments and 6 teacher requests. While we had to make service changes due to the 
tier 3 mitigations, patrons we have encountered have been very understanding. Many said they are 
happy just to be able to browse shelves and check out materials. They are also grateful for the virtual 
program videos and most of all, Take-it Make-it craft kits!  
 
“I helped the sweetest girl who was looking for books on sign language. She was so excited and polite to 
get the books. When I said we also have videos on learning sign language, she was even happier. She 
came back and asked for more books to put on hold. She had an armful of books and will have 3 more 
coming.” Rosemary B. 
 
“A patron was looking for phonics books for her kindergartener. She mentioned that she was concerned 
that her child just didn’t seem to be getting it and was looking for extra help. We talked about how she 
can continue to work on phonics at home in a fun way by reading, playing, singing, etc. She appeared 
reassured after our conversation that she is doing the right thing for her daughter.” Jen F. 
 
TWEEN BOOK BOX 

 
We launched this brand new service on 
November 30. Similar to popular subscription 
boxes, the Tween Book Boxes contain prizes 
or crafts and a surprise book from the J 
Fiction or J Graphic Novel collections. “Each 
box has a different genre–fantasy, realistic 
fiction, or historical fiction. They are the 
perfect companion to your socially distanced 
holiday season!” Melisa M. 

https://youtu.be/O5SusWHoovE
https://thethirdinstitue.org/
https://thethirdinstitue.org/


STORY OF THE MONTH: 
“Three little girls that usually attend Zoom Storytime brought us thank you cards. They drew their happy 
thoughts and made bead bracelets for us. Very sweet!” Andreea D.  

  
DISPLAYS 
 
DISPLAY CASES 
 
Native American Heritage Month “I made a map of Illinois, with a list of the six original tribes that were 
in this area, to see if patrons can match them to the correct location.  Answers are provided under a flap 
on the outside of the display.  There is a sign that says the origin of the word ‘Illinois’, as well as 
greetings in several of the native languages.  In the side displays, I have #ownvoices books from our 
collection.  On the left, is a sign showing how to count from 1–5 in each language.  On the right is how to 
say various colors (white, yellow, red, black) in the languages.” Jen F. 
 

 
 

Family Reading Week, Thanksgiving, Tree of Thankfulness 
“On each leaf that I included on the tree, I wrote something that we could be thankful for during this 
holiday season. I have also left some leaves in a small basket at the desk so the children could write 
things that they are thankful for and we could include them on our tree.” Marta M. 
 
Emoji Book Titles 

“For this display, I took several children’s books and used emojis to create the titles.  I included both the 
emojis and the books in the display case so that children can try to match the title with the correct 
books.” Jen F. 

 

 



OTHER 

Children’s Services Librarian, Sarah Dolley, celebrated 16 years of service at Fountaindale! 
 
From Amina Ali’s report 

Circulation Services Department Report 
 

Department Summary 
 
November was a quiet month for Circulation. Due to new migitations by the state, Fountaindale 
converted to be a check-out and browsing only collection for patrons beginning on November 20th. 
Circulation has been working on finding ways to create more streamlined procedures during this time. 
One of our projects, the self-checkout feature via our Communico phone app launched this month and 
has already received great feedback! This will make it easier for patrons to checkout while they browse 
our materials. Communications and Circulation have also been working on doing automatic renewal of 
Fountaindale library cards. The vendor we are working with, Patron Point, is able to verify addresses to 
get Adult patrons an automatic 3 year renewal. If the patron’s address is unable to be verified, they have 
to come into the building for their 3 year library card renewal.  
 
Also this month, Circulation assisted Outreach with creating Student Success Cards! Outreach did an 
excellent job getting all the cards done before the end of the month. Circulation will now wait as library 
cards get merged and work on reports that require manual attention. ILS Manager Matt Hammermeister 
will work on the automatic merging and Outreach Services Manager Tana Petrov will work on the cards 
getting picked up by the Valley View School District.  
 
Kate T., Assistant Manager 
 
We finished up Early Voting at the beginning of the month and we moved the Information Desk back to 
its original spot.  Luckily we were open on Election Day and Circulation was very busy looking up 
patrons polling places well into the evening. 
 
On November 9th, Joe C. had his 5 year anniversary and was recognized at the Board Meeting on 
November 19th.  Congratulations on 5 years, Joe! 
 
We had our Polaris upgrade on November 8th and so far Circulation is really liking the new features 
such as cancelling an already in-transit hold and suspending holds for multiple items all at one time. 
 
Danny B., Circulation Services Associate Manager 
 
Our newest Circulation Aide, Sara F., started on November 9th.  Sara is just about finished with her 
training, she’s been a great addition to the team.  
 
The Circulation Aide team searched for 8,422 items from the 1,441 pages of the Pick List we had during 
the month. Approximately 37,619 items were returned though our AMH after being in quarantine for 3 
days. 
 
On November 17th, I attended an Assistant Managers & Supervisors meeting over Zoom.  Similar to 
past meetings, staff from different libraries gave updates on the many different ways Covid-19 has 
changed the ways libraries operate.  Topics such as hiring, training, reduction of hours, and staff health 
concerns.   
 

 

 



 
Mary S., Lead Specialist 
  
November was a quieter month in the library, due in part to the increased mitigations for Tier 3 Covid-
19.  I verified 96 library card applications in November. As part of the Student Success card rollout, I 
helped put together the information and library cards for BJ Ward Elementary students. 
  
11 long overdue items were returned to the library, and with fewer patrons in the library, there were only 
28 lost and found items recorded during November 
  
Patrons faithfully visited us to pick up requested materials, and we were able to keep unclaimed 
numbers low, also there were no holds missing this month! 
 
Ann B., Lead Specialist 
  
During November we generated 42 Snags and resolved 51 Snags. Money saved by reclaiming 
Fountaindale material through the Snag process was $871.77 and money saved by reclaiming material 
for the other libraries in the consortium was $15.99 for a total of $887.76. On Thursday, November 19, 
2020, I attended the monthly Music & Vinyl Record Discussion meeting via Zoom. This month we reviewed 
the check-out/check-in procedures I prepared and discussed the start up list of vinyl albums we would like 
to see in the collection. We shared potential artists and album titles to add to the current list and discussed 
what genres need more titles. Christina Theobald presented the layout of where the collection will be on 
the second floor and the potential shelving needed to house the collection. Christina asked our opinions 
on potential turntables for the collection and asked us to research turntable systems that will be of benefit 
to the library. 
  
Leigh Anne V., Lead Specialist 
  
During the month of November, I assisted Outreach in their Student Success Card project, I worked on 
cards for Jane Addams Middle School, which included over 600 cards. I continued assessing damaged 
materials and implementing the new damaged stickers which has been a great tool for notating 
materials. With this new procedure I have updated the damaged procedures document. 
  
Harris K., Lead Specialist 
  
The total number of claims this month went down to 26 compared to October's 35. We found five items 
on the shelf while one item was found and later returned by a patron. November has been the lowest 
amount of claims we have had this year! I'm glad to see items getting taken off patron's accounts during 
our quarantine time. 
  
During November's Collection Usage Committee, it was revealed that during the month of October we 
circulated a total of 46,477 print materials. The three top collections were DVDs, picture books, and 
juvenile fiction. The top three movies were A Secret Garden, Spiderman Far from Home, and The High 
Note. 
  

Circulation Statistics 
 

New Patrons Registered 9,811 

Holds Pulled From Shelves  8,422 

 



Drive Up Statistics 

Total Visits  
(November 2020) 

1,116 

Previous Month 
(October  2020) 

1,130 

 

 

From Jeffrey Fisher’s report 
Studio 300 

 
Here are our November 2020 key stats: 

 239 patrons actively used our spaces. 
o 26 were Non-FPLD people. 

 667 items were checked out. 
o 34 of that total circulated out of the lab. 

 56 patrons attended our 18 virtual programs. 
o Total programming hours came to 17.5.  

 19 patrons completed our online Orientation 
 And views of Studio 300-specific videos posted during November were: 

o Storycorps The Great Thanksgiving Listen Tech - 16 

Justin 
For November, Justin watched Ryan Dowd’s course “Ornery Teenagers: Compassionately and 
effectively managing their problem behaviors.” Justin also viewed his other course called “Getting Hit on 
by Customers: Women (and men) share their tools for stopping unwanted attention.” Later Justin also 
recorded more sewing videos with Kellie Chase, two of which needed some simple editing tasks. Finally, 
Justin finished editing and uploaded the virtual Carvey Training Video to Niche Academy.  

Anna 
This month Anna started our holiday programming with Christmas gift ideas where the patrons made 
snowman candles and decorated wood ornaments. The attendees seemed to really enjoy these 
projects. Anna prepared all of the December projects for our Take It Make It classes. Also, she 
completed cards and decorations for our December give away. 
 

McKayla 
During November, McKayla created a display highlighting important 
tools within Photoshop for photo restoration. She took a badly 
damaged photo and showed the process of restoring it. McKayla 
also taught a digitizing class where she demonstrated how to use 
our Epson scanners to digitize photos, negatives and slides. Also, 
she discussed how to convert VHS to DVD and spoke about our 
other digitizing resources. She also completed Ryan Dowd’s 
webinar about Dementia and Alzheimer’s. Two things these 
diseases do not impact until the later stages are reading and the 
ability to pick up on nonverbal cues.  
 

 
 



Monica 
Monica has completed the following training courses: 

 Ryan Dowd’s Problem Behaviors When Dealing with Covid Webinar 
 Lynda course Using Green Screen to Make Great Videos with Creator Up 
 Ryan Dowd’s Getting Hit on By Customers Webinar 
 Ryan Dowd’s Burnout and Compassion Fatigue Webinar 

She has also begun and is currently working on Tom Green’s Adobe XD Lynda course and Richard 
Harrington’s Green Screen Techniques for Video and Photography Lynda course. Monica has 
completed an instructional sheet for patrons to use the new display monitors. She also reviewed the 
Maker Virtual Trainings and gave feedback on them. 
 
Patrick 
At the start of November Patrick taught the Podcasting with the Rodecaster Pro virtual webinar. Patrick 
outlined the curriculum for the Digitizing 101 course with McKayla so she could teach it later that week. 
He attended meetings for the Tinker Technology Troupe, Collections Usage Committee, and Vinyl 
Records Task Force. He has been busy adding vinyl record titles and links to the task force’s 
spreadsheet, and also researched and made recommendations for the record players the library hopes to 
acquire for checking out to patrons. Patrick continued to adapt to the growing changes with Covid-19 
restrictions at the library. He picked his goals for the following year, continuing to develop the StoryCorps 
program and developing programming and training videos for a variety of live streaming/ recording topics 
and techniques. At the end of the month Patrick completed reviewing and giving feedback on the maker 
machine training videos, conducted a virtual one on one with a patron continuing a project he had started 
at the studio at home, and put together materials and content for the December wall. 
 
Adriana 

Adriana continued to work with staff on the maker training projects 
that are to go live soon on Niche Academy. She continues to 
refine and ensure we are providing the information patrons need 
to be able to access our maker lab machines. Adriana als 
continued to work with Randi C. from ATSD on the K-Talk video 
project, this month the topic was our Top 3 K-pop Artists.. Adriana 
concluded the Photoshop Learning circle, the three patrons that 
continued on with the class were able to successfully finish their 
course. Adriana also had a few memorable patron interactions 
including one with Amy S. who requested assistance with finding 

information and resources to create fun green screen pictures. Recently Amy reached out to Adriana to 
thank her for her assistance and share with her the fruits of her labors.  

Jeffrey 
The State of Illinois C-19 Mitigations that went into effect on November 20 effectively "paused" patron 
use of Studio 300 rooms, computers, and in-house equipment. Patrons continue to check out resources 
for outside library use, though. As part of this change, we removed our presence in the lobby at this 
time. However, we continue our virtual programming and offer as much (phone, email, and virtual) 
assistance as possible. When these mitigations are lifted, we're prepared to return to the appointment 
model we'd been using since June. 
 
Jeffrey continued his support of our virtual programs via Zoom, Facebook Live, and YouTube video 
recording/editing. He also managed tech for this month's Board meeting. November's YouTube 
Statistics: 

 65 new videos posted 
 4651 unique views 
 229.2 hours viewed 
 41 new subscribers (649 overall) 



Jeffrey compiled an extensive blog post in support of Indie Author Day and worked with Steven F. in 
Communications who did an amazing job presenting the information to our patron community. Read the 
post here. 
 
A new Learning Circle launched this month: SQL Basics while the previous ones concluded. Studio 300 
webinars included: Weekly NaNoWriMo check ins, Podcasting with Rodecaster Pro, Adult Makers DIY, 
Silhouette Cameo, Digitizing 101, Photography Basics, The Great Thanksgiving Listen Tech and 
Recording, Studio Portrait Photography, and the Nameless Writers Group. 
 

The Soon to Be Famous committee announced 
the 2020 winners for this year's Indie Author 
Project contest. Jeffrey produced three videos 
and updated the STBF website accordingly. 
Watch the interviews with the winners here. 
Our Adult winner was also the same author 
who won our first manuscript contest. 
 
One of our staff, Nikki S., departed this month 
so we are actively searching for a suitable 
candidate to fill the open position. 
 

 
 
From Tana Petrov’s report 

Outreach Services Department 
 
Outreach General Updates 
Here is a summary of our most important stats: 

 2292 students were provided with a booktalk by Mrs. C 
 842 items were picked up from our remote bookdrops 
 542 reference questions were answered by Outreach staff 
 464 kids were provided with a storytime/ puppet show by Miss Laura 
 165 patrons visited our Bookmobile and/or Library Express Van stops  
 30 patrons participated in our International Game Fun Month Program, where three lucky patrons 

won a board game 
 14 patrons were provided with Home Delivery Service  
 14 patrons were provided with books and book club discussion materials 

 
In addition: 

 We shifted and withdrew materials from the Outreach collection to free up space for new materials 
 We continued to provide virtual outreach via pre-recorded videos and/or live Zoom sessions. 

Examples of outreach team’s virtual programs can be found on our YouTube channel  
 Tana’s article Away From the Library was published in ILA Reporter 

 
Services for Preschools 

 Laura provided storytimes to 464 kids. Laura’s 
monthly schedule for servicing preschoolers is now full 
with 6 Zoom visits, 1 in-person visit, and 6 programs to 
prepare and record. In total, Laura reached over 900 views 
in a month, more than her average in-person stats from 
the same time last year. 

 
Storytime with Miss Laura: L is for Lion 

 

https://www.fountaindale.org/2020/11/02/indie-author-day-2020/
https://www.fountaindale.org/2020/11/02/indie-author-day-2020/
https://soontobefamous.info/blog/our-2020-winners
https://www.youtube.com/c/FountaindalePublicLibrary/videos
https://www.ila.org/content/documents/reporter_1220.pdf


Services for Schools 
 We collaborated with John R Tibbott Elementary School for their Sweet Reads Book Giveaway 

by donating color-changing pencils, folders and copies of The Fountain. 
 Cindy set up a new display in CSD featuring cookbooks.  
 Cindy provided virtual booktalks to 2292 students. Cindy shares in her report that to keep kids in 

Kindergarten and 1st grade more engaged, she has been doing puppet shows, giving kids roles 
to play in the story.  

 

 
Services for Adults/ Seniors 

 Home Delivery Service 
 Deliveries and pick-ups of materials at senior facilities 
 We donated three boxes of withdrawn Large Print books and magazines in good condition to 

Heritage Woods to add to their library  
 11/19/2020  Birdman Video Review (Dennis). From Dennis’ report: “My Virtual Video Review of 

the movie Birdman debuted on YouTube and Facebook. Melissa did a great job playing a 
superhero and John Hopkins made his debut as the voice of Joey the Puppet. It was a lot of fun 
to make and thank you to Jeffrey for helping us out as always.” 

 11/25/2020 The Things We Cannot Say by Kelly Rimmer (Melissa)  
 Atria and Heritage Woods Book Clubs - providing with materials and discussion questions 

(Sarah) 
 Monthly craft kit for the memory care residents at Revere Court (Melissa)  

 

 
Bookmobile and Library Express Van Community Visits 

 We continued our Library Express Van  monthly visits to Atria at River Trail, Heritage Woods, 
Greenleaf Apartments, and Kindercare Seneca. 

 We continued our Bookmobile monthly visits to First Presbyterian Church, Target, MacKenzie 
Falls, RiverStone Apartments, Promenade Apartments, Beconridge, BRAC, Annerino 
Community Center, Ikea and Best Buy; however due to the to Tier 3 Mitigation restrictions, we 
had to again close the doors of the Bookmobile for patrons. We were still able to provide our 
patrons with contact free service though. From Melissa's report: “Since the Covid numbers are 
rising, we decided not to let patrons on the bookmobile. We will still be going to our stops so that 
patrons can return items and pick-up their holds. When Tana and I went to Target on November 
21 st , we set up a table outside the bookmobile. We had a few bags of materials outside for 
patrons to look at if they wanted. We provided lots of reader’s advisory that day.” 

 

 
Special Projects 

 Student Success Cards project in collaboration with the White Oak Library District and Valley 
View School District. The goal is to issue a library card to all students in our school district, 
assisting them in becoming life-long learners while enjoying all of the services and programs we 
offer here in our library. From Carolyn’s report: “There are approximately 10,000 cards to be 
completed. All staff have taken turns scanning cards into the spreadsheet, stickering cards and 
envelopes, and organizing completed cards by classes and schools. Outreach was able to 
complete making cards with the assistance of the Circulation department. Tana is working with 
Matt Hammermeister from Pinnacle, our Circulation Dept, White Oak Library, and the school 
district for the next steps in the process.” 

 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=kEUPj_1akVc
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=K21Tf4Tf_5Y
https://communico.fountaindale.org/events?t=Bookmobile%2FOutreach&r=thismonth
https://communico.fountaindale.org/events?t=Bookmobile%2FOutreach&r=thismonth


Student Success Cards completed and stuffed in envelopes waiting to be delivered to the 13 schools 
our library serves  

Photo credit: Tana Petrov 
 

  
 

 From Marleigha’s report: “I want to highlight our Bookmobile fun activity we did this month which 
was a raffle of 3 games – Trouble, Super Fight and Taboo. I helped pick out these games and I 
love all three. I have enjoyed encouraging patrons on the Bookmobile to enter into this raffle to 
win a cool game. These days we all could use more entertainment and these games will help the 
time go by during these somewhat challenging times. I am excited to see which patrons win the 
games, and I cannot wait for next month when we are giving away hot cocoa which I think will 
also be a success.” 

 
 

Outreach staff with the games we are giving away at the end of November 
Photo credit: Tana Petrov 

 

 
 Book Clubs. From Sarah’s report: “I completed the discussion 
materials for both the Atria and Heritage Woods book clubs. The 
books for December are Starless Sea by Erin Mortgenstern (Atria) 
and The Guest Book by Sarah Blake (Heritage Woods).  For the 
month of January, I am hoping to do the books Hillbilly Elegy by J.D. 
Vance and Three Weeks with My Brother by Nicholas Sparks & 
Micah Sparks.” 

 
Vehicles Maintenance 
 11/24/2020 BKM to Diesel Services for oil change/ preventative 
maintenance  
 11/25/2020 Van to Diesel Services for oil change/ preventive 
maintenance 

 
 
 
 



Staff and Patrons’ Comments 
 
From Marleigha’s report: “This month I celebrated my third year anniversary as an employee of 
Fountaindale Public Library District. I am happy to have found this library when I first moved to 
Bolingbrook four years ago. I vividly remember coming into the building and having a conversation with 
Danny at the Info Desk, and he was so helpful and kind. That is what attracted me to the library as a 
worker. The kind spirit of the people who work here. The books do not make the library, we do and I am 
thrilled to be a part of such a great staff. Cheers to more years!” 

From Melissa’s report: “One of our home delivery patrons called to let us know that she was done with 
her book and needed a pick-up. She wanted to thank us for providing her with such a wonderful service. 
She was using our services temporarily because she injured herself and couldn’t drive. I let her know to 
give us a call whenever she needs us. She thanked me over and over again.” 

From Sarah’s report: “On November 2nd, I was driving the Bookmobile back to the library near the end 
of the work day. As I approached the library parking lot I noticed a semi truck blocking the book drop and 
the lane we use to turn wide into our parking spot. Carolyn was my passenger and got out trying to 
figure out a solution. She was able to get John Hopkins who looked all over the driver of this truck so it 
could be moved with no such luck. Dennis came out and got in the Bookmobile with me to help.  We 
decided together he would try to maneuver it in the tight squeeze as I spotted him making sure we didn’t 
hit anything. Carolyn ended up moving the Library Express Van to give more room. Dennis was able to 
park the vehicle and we were able to punch out on time from work. This moment showed how well we 
work as a team and figure out solutions together.”    

 
 
 
From Debra Dudek’s report 

Adult and Teen Services Department 
 

General Comments on the Month 

Due to the Tier 3 restrictions, I updated our service desk talking points and distributed them to each 
department.  I also updated and created new service desk procedures in Google Docs so they can be 
shared and consulted as needed. 

 
We received a nice e-mail from the United States Federal Census Department thanking us for our efforts 
to assist our community in completing this year’s online census return.  While the event hosting 
components of this year’s plans were not fully realized, our library provided consistent and accurate 
information for our community through a variety of blog posts, social media posts, and free handouts.   

 
November was a great month for our Career Online High School students.  Naila L. completed six units 
of coursework for the month, tipping her over the 75% completion mark toward her diploma.  She is 
working diligently everyday with a goal to complete her diploma before December 31.  Naila is super 
focused on completing her coursework while helping her four children with their own online school 
assignments.  She currently has a Home Health Care provider certificate, and when she finishes her 
diploma she will be eligible to apply for a position in a local assisted living center or to pursue higher 
education at College of DuPage or Joliet Junior College. 

 

 

 

 

 



Programming (includes):  

YA Programs: 

 
Teen Crafternoons 
 
I filmed our November Crafternoon project, Paper Luminaries, in early November. I used construction 
paper, tissue paper, scissors and glue to create a simple luminary that could grace your holiday table. 
This video was posted on YouTube (11 views) and Instagram (80 views). 
 
Teen Coloring Contest 
 
We had several fantastic entries in our Fall Teen Coloring Contest. Our winner was Katrina G., Grade 
10. She did a fantastic job of making our simple coloring sheet into a custom art piece. Check out her 
work!  
 
Teen Reading Challenge 

 
Our Teen Reading Challenge was extended through November 1. I had created a 
Bingo Board where teens could pick and choose different reading challenges like 
reading a new format (graphic novel), reading a new author or series or a specific 
genre. Our winner, Dhruvi P., was selected in a random drawing. She won a $25 
Target gift card and a bag of books. I worked with her to pick out her prize books. 
She was very excited to receive her prize. 
 

 

 

 

 
Vortex Display 
 
Even though our teen space is currently closed, I have still been creating displays for our Vortex display 
case. I wanted to create something that we could keep up for several months so I spent time creating a 
faux fireplace. I used paper, arcs and other miscellaneous items we had on hand to create the fun display. 
 

 
 
Test Proctoring:  
As far as Proctor Student needs this month, there were fourteen exams taken.  Twelve of the exams 
were for Real Estate while two were for General Studies.  All the students were from Bolingbrook. Ten of 
the exams were online and four were on paper. 



Career Online High School: Statistics 

Currently Enrolled: 6 

Currently Enrolled 30 Day Probation: 0 

Currently Enrolled Completed 30 Day Probation: 0 

Students 75% Through Program: 1 

Graduate: 24 

 

Adult Programming:      

Programming:  

From Nick M. Report 

This month was a bit of a whirlwind. I continued working on making sure that everything for the 
upcoming Yule Ball was moving swiftly, despite having to adjust some of the different moving parts.  
 
Sewing 
 Pocket Pot Holder (11/10) 8 Attendees 
 Mini Duffel Bag (11/24) 8 Attendees 

 
This was definitely an increase in the attendance 
that we have seen in the last few months for 
Kellie’s program, which is really good. I’m not sure 
if this is because people are becoming more 
comfortable with working through the new 
circumstances of how we are having to do 
programming, but I find that this is a fitting way to 
end our registration required section of Kellie’s 
classes and introduce the more open path that we 
are transitioning into. 
 
Starting in December, we are just posting Kellie’s sewing classes right to our YouTube page, giving all of 
our patron’s access to Kellie’s work. Switching some of the ways that this program is handled is that 
there is a different way for us to distribute some of the files that Kellie often sends to her students, like 
templates and materials lists, but that isn’t so much an obstacle as we would have previously thought. 
This path of having the open classes is the plan we have for Kellie’s classes for the foreseeable future, 
and there is a hope that having more people with access will bring more people to the channel and to 
the program. We will be monitoring for the next cycle or two.  
 
Storm Chasing 101 (11/10) 7 Attendees, 18 views in 2 weeks on Youtube 
 

 
This was a program that I was 
excited to host. I found the group 
through another library hosting 
them and saying that the 
presentation was fascinating and 
engaging and that the team that 
presents it are knowledgeable. 
And they were very easy to work 
and schedule with.  
 
 



From Tony N. Report 

Illinois Indians - Thursday, November 05 2020, 7:00pm - 8:00pm 
Observing that November was Native American Heritage Month, we invited Starved Rock State Park 
historian and writer, Mark Walczynski, to talk about the people that our state is named after. We had 15 
viewers with us that night and they enjoyed Mark as he described the Inoca people’s way of life and 
history.  

 
From Brian S. Report 
Great Reads Book Club & Native American Flute Circle  
Meetings with the Native American Flute and Great Reads have been very productive and positive.  I am 
working with Ilya and Miss Pat to solidify contracts and events scheduling for the upcoming 2021 
calendar year.   

 
For the Music & Vinyl Discussion Committee we created a Vinyl Task Force Collection 
spreadsheet.  The spreadsheet was created as a way of inputting a list of roughly 500 titles to be 
purchased for the vinyl collection that are deemed "Essential" in the world of music from a variety of 
genres. 

 
                    Great Reads Book Club   Native American Flute Circle 

            
                
  
 Update on ATSD Staff Site – Agnes B. 

1. Staff Site: 
Updated the staff website weekly with new break times and desk schedules for the week. 
Updated information sections with new Covid Tier-3 restrictions (it wasn’t that hard to 
strikethrough nearly everything…) 
Added the Spanish Speaker’s Schedule link. 
Updated the December stats section with the new Media-Lab stats link. 

 

 
2. Media-Lab stats merger: 

Seeing as how both sides of the Media desk have been doing a lot of cross-over work, I had 
been thinking about combining the Media desk and Lab stats together – for ease and fewer tabs. 
I also had a few staff members suggest it as well. Since a few of the categories overlapped 
between the two sheets, I only really had to make space for Printing Help and Computer 
Questions.  



To make room for it, I rearranged some of the sections by getting rid of Computer Lab 
(information on services and location), combining Copy and Fax into a 3-in-1 Copy/Fax/Scan, 
and a bit of resizing.  

 

 

 

 
Librarian Highlight 

Jay P. 

 

With the increase in mitigation efforts, the number of patrons in the library has dropped substantially. 
 
For training I watched “Ornery Teenagers: Compassionately and effectively managing their problem 
behaviors'' with Ryan Dowd. As always, his experience and insight has been invaluable. The section on 
unidirectional and bi-directional respect was an interesting examination on power dynamics. 
 
Last year I cleaned out the reference file from the 3rd floor desk. After looking for anything that would be 
worth saving, I saved the (still substantial) remainder in a cabinet and forgot about it. As this year was 
our 50th anniversary, I was hesitant to throw anything out that may be important to our history. This week 
I disposed of at least 20 pounds of paper, leaving me with several items I would like to keep. One I 
discovered was a copy of “The Kankakee Canal / by William W. Schofield.”, which was in the local 
history collection of both Plainfield and Lockport, but not in ours. I gave this copy to Christina for 
cataloging. There are several newspaper clippings about the library and maps that I may scan later. 

 
I submitted two blog posts, “Book Review: Leadership Strategy and Tactics by Jocko Willink’ and 
“Crítica de la Película: Arrugas (Wrinkles)” along with an English version of the second. I plan to do 
more bilingual movie reviews in the future. The films I have been watching for immersion may be 
interesting to some of our Spanish-speaking patrons, but they may also be of interest to general film 
buffs. Jose was a big help while editing and I am proud to say he made less corrections than with my 
previous post. 

 
Due to lack of attendance, I have decided to discontinue my Job Club events. Depending on the turn out 
for the next three I am still due to give, I may shift the format to Youtube videos with increased editing. 
At the very least writing these presentations has been helpful when consulting patrons on resumes and 
cover letters. 
 
Librarian Highlight 

Erica E. 

Book Talks  

I filmed, edited, and uploaded 1 book talk video for patrons to enjoy this month! My book talk this month 
was called “Foodie Fiction”. I thought that this topic was perfect since the Holidays are coming up.  I 
shared 3 books that focus on food or cooking. This video went live on Thursday November 5th. You can 
find the video here: https://www.youtube.com/user/FPLStudio300/videos 

https://www.youtube.com/user/FPLStudio300/videos


I have decided along with Communications that I will continue making videos into next year.  The videos 
have been a great way to connect with our community and provide readers services virtually so I’m 
excited to keep doing them!  

Blog Posts 

I wrote 1 blog post this month!  

My blog post was in regards to my YouTube book talk on “Foodie Fiction” it was published on Thursday, 
November 5th.  You can find the blog post here: https://www.fountaindale.org/2020/11/05/ericas-book-
talk-foodie-fiction/ 

Book Clubs/Programming 

The Chills & Thrills book club met on Wednesday November 4th to discuss “The Devil in the White City” 
by Erik Larson.  We had 11 people in total for this meeting! This meeting was a hybrid with some joining 
us in person and others joining us via Zoom.  Joyce in CSD reached out to me last month and asked if I 
would be able to show her how the Owl Camera that we use for the hybrid meetings. I was able to show 
her and Sarah D. how it works at this meeting!  

The coffee and conversations book club met via Zoom on November 17th! We had 7 people in total for 
this meeting! We discussed “The Nickel Boys” by Colson Whitehead.  The group really loved this book 
although they all agreed that it was a bit “intense” and we need a lighter book for next month! We had a 
really great discussion though, one of the best that we have had. The book centers on a young black 
boy in the Jim Crow era who is sent to a reform school for a crime that he didn’t commit. We had a lot of 
discussions around racism and many folks in the group were willing to share personal insights into their 
experience which was really powerful and moving. Luckily our group is a really safe place for people to 
open up and have difficult conversations and I’m really grateful for that. Next month we are reading “Get 
a life, Chloe brown” by Talia Hibbert 

I am still part of the Amazon Fire Task Force! We have been making incredible progress this month. I 
worked on the check in and checkout procedures for ATSD and I have also started on a FAQ 
document.  

Readers Advisory:  

This month we received a huge influx of personalized reading recommendation requests! This was 
thanks to an ad that communications put on the front page of the website. We received 7 requests in 
total this month! We also received our first movie/TV requests which was great! I received really great 
feedback on the recommendations that I gave out as well! A patron emailed me back and told me that I 
was “spot on” with my recommendations and that she is very excited to start reading!  

In other good news, I have now officially taken responsibility of the 3rd floor display (near the self-
checkout)! Collections was previously responsible for this display but they graciously allowed me to take 
it over since I have been consistently helping with displays and have been doing a great job! Ashe and I 
created our first display called “We need diverse books”. Ashe created a wonderful sign and we 
collected about 50 titles in total. We have had 7 checkouts in total so far!  

The desk displays continue to do very well! The 3rd floor display saw 14 total checkouts and the 2nd 
floor had 11. I have also added some “overflow display” books to each desk so that staff can easily 
replace books when people grab them.  

 

 

https://www.fountaindale.org/2020/11/05/ericas-book-talk-foodie-fiction/
https://www.fountaindale.org/2020/11/05/ericas-book-talk-foodie-fiction/


Specialist Highlight 

Rebecca F. 

This month has also been a great learning experience since the computer assistants were merged with 
specialists. It was great finally getting some full training on the computer commons. I had covered 
breaks plenty of times but now I am feeling happy to finally know the full procedures for every situation 
over there. I’m starting to work more shifts on that side and it is helping me get more comfortable with it.  

Some other notable things that have happened are: helping patrons with e-readers, accessing sources, 
and readers advisory. I always love helping patrons figure out their e-readers, because they are so 
happy once they realize that it is not as hard as they are thinking it is. It is almost the same with e-
resources because the patron is always excited to be able to continue their research! And readers' 
advice is a new one for me. I never really have anyone ask me for recommendations, so I am now 
getting excited when someone does. I have been messing around with novelist occasionally to be able 
to get comfortable with it and be ready for anything that anyone asks for.  

The last thing that I am happy about is my trivia! It is doing very well! This month we had 40 participants, 
and patrons were even active in the chat. It was a lot of fun as always and patrons really seemed to 
enjoy themselves too. I’m hoping this attendance keeps up and we can keep this program going 
because it is a lot of fun, and is not expensive to hold either. I hope eventually too things start 
progressing towards normalcy at least a little bit. I would love to have more patrons coming in for us to 
help out. 

 
Specialist Highlight 

Allyson P. 

I wrote and published my first blog post, which connected a recent video game release to books on a 
similar topic in our collection.  I also started to write my second blog post, which will discuss podcasts 
that have published a book. 

I completed several training courses in Niche Academy from Ryan Dowd, including: 

 The Core Homelessness Training 
 Homelessness Training Q&A Parts 1 & 2 
 Covid Training 
 Jerks with Homes 

Specialist Highlight 

Ben J. 

Most reference questions I’ve fielded throughout the month have been about our current printing 
services and helping patrons work through which method of remote printing works best for their 
particular situation. 
 
One patron in particular was very happy with my help and our faxing prices when he needed to send an 
80 page fax job. Other patrons have greatly appreciated my willingness to check down in circulation for 
recently returned materials that they were looking for and couldn’t find on the shelves. 
 
Specialist Highlight 

Uriel C. 

Things I’m currently working with are my Network+ course from CompTIA that I’m taking in Gale courses 
as well as I downloaded a practice test application on my phone for the A+ Certification course. Just a 
matter of time now before I can take the actual test and get certified. I am planning to take a language 
course next year as well to learn Japanese.  



Specialist Highlight 
 
Nelly A. 
 
I had to work on my annual self-evaluation this month. I have been working here at Fountaindale for 
three whole years. While that may be nothing to some of the employees around here with double digits, 
it is a really long time for me. This is the longest I have worked somewhere consecutively. This job has 
made a huge impact in my overall development. Nothing out of the norm this month. Just checkouts and 
holds. We do have web printing, the closure of the commons leads to a lot of web printing and walking 
patrons through it. 
 
I have been working on my Yule Ball Blog post! It is due in a couple days! 
 

 
Building Operations (Tasos Priovolos) 
 
 
The entire Building Operations department assisted in the early voting which was held in 
Meeting Room A.  With the hard work from the entire team, early voting was extremely 
successful.   
 
Security continues to monitor patron counts at the front door to assure we stay below the 
threshold recommended by the state for our size building. 
 
Door handles and high touch areas continue to be disinfected multiple times throughout the day 
per the recommendations provided to us.  Security has done a tremendous job in assuring we 
schedule and complete the disinfecting tasks in a timely fashion. 
 
Continue working with Trane to schedule the replacement of the controller on the 2nd floor air 
handler.  Met with the electricians to discuss options on rewiring the new controller and the 
impact this will have on our building air control. 
 
Attended a Prevailing Wage webinar discussing the new Illinois requirements for contractors 
working on our building.  This webinar also discussed proper notification to the contractors 
regarding the certified payroll portal.  Working with Finance and Paul to update the procedures 
and forms needed for any work which that falls under the prevailing wage rules. 
 
Per new state requirements on gatherings, we have removed all seating in the building and 
have stored them in various parts in the building.  This work was done prior to opening in order 
to minimally impact patrons during business hours. 
 
We are continuing to work on updating our Disaster Plan for 2020/2021.  Based on the disaster 
plan, annual updates are required in order to keep the plan updated. 
 
Security Report From John Hopkins (Security Supervisor) 
 
General Election 
Right on the heels of early voting’s end, Security staff fielded approximately 200 questions on 
election day and assisted many voters by looking up their polling location (with their consent or 
at their request) and fielded a variety of questions and clarifications about mail-in ballots and 
the library as an early voting site. 



Staff Safety Training 
Building Security Supervisor John Hopkins conducted a staff safety training presentation to a 
socially-distanced audience of nine staff members on November 11th. This training provided 
new staff members with essential information about missing child (Code Adam), building 
evacuation, disaster/severe weather, and other procedures. The training also provided 
information about how and when to write incident reports, an overview of the conduct policy, 
and similar topics. This training session’s size was constrained by occupancy limits, and 
another session is scheduled for nine more staff members to be held on December 9th, barring 
further restrictions. This training has been in high demand for staff members who have 
requested a “refresher” on these topics, so there is already a waiting list for yet another session 
which could be held as soon as January.  
 
Several staff members have expressed a desire to recertify in First Aid, CPR, and AED use; 
however this has been delayed because Red Cross instructors are not conducting in-person 
training during the pandemic. We expect to resume staff certification once it is available. 
 
Tier 3 Mitigation Procedures 
 
Security and Building Operations staff removed all chairs from the common areas of the library, 
and implemented new procedures restricting use of common areas, and a new maximum 
occupancy of 75 patrons. 
 
Thanksgiving Meal Kits 
 
Security assisted Ashley on Sunday the 22nd as community pantry donations were delivered in 
large volume, and assembled into over 100 meal kits in Meeting Room A. Security staff also 
helped stock the community pantry with the completed kits. By midday Monday there were no 
more meal kits to stock, but Ashley was able to package and deliver approximately ten more. 
We are grateful for her dedication to the pantry, and proud to be able to support this effort for 
the community. 
 
Security Staff 
 
Building Security Monitor Gerardo Marroquin will be leaving the library for a full time 
opportunity. Gerardo worked in our department for a year, and his calm, amiable demeanor was 
a credit to our department and the library. We wish Gerardo all the best in the future! 
 
Patron Occupancy Stats 
 
Daily patron occupancy numbers fell moderately in November, even accounting for the end of 
early voting. Average occupancy ranged from the mid 20s to low 50s. Typical peak occupancy 
was around 60 patrons, though these higher peaks were less frequent in November. Once Tier 
3 Mitigation procedures went into effect, typical patron occupancy was between 7-20 at any 
given time. 
  

ZENDESK -  
 
In November, 37 new maintenance tickets were created, and 34 new or 
existing tickets were completed. 



Collection Management & Technical Services (Christina Theobald) 
 
 

November 2020 Snapshot 

 3,303 new items were made available 

 5,129 old & worn items were withdrawn 

 42,875 physical checkouts 

 262 interlibrary loans processed for our patrons 

 19% increase in Hoopla digital usage 

 13% circulation increase in Adult Graphic Novels 

 12% circulation increase in Adult Video Games 

 513 items repaired 

 218 invoices paid 

 102 purchase orders created 

 

 

Personnel Updates 

After four months and several interviews later, we have finally hired a new Cataloger!  Karina Andrus 

started in the Collection Services department in late November. Karina holds a Master’s degree in 

Library and Information Science from Dominican University.  Karina has worked several years at the 

Highland Park Public Library in both Technical Services and the Youth Services Departments.  Most 

recently, Karina was a Video Archives Specialist at Rotary International.  We welcome Karina to the 

department and look forward to working with her.  We hope to close the gap on our current cataloging 

backlog by the end of the year and prepare for the influx of new materials to catalog for the Bookmobile 

Opening Day Collection. 

 

New Bookmobile Collection 

Outreach and Collection Services have begun discussions on the direction of the new Bookmobile 

Opening Day Collection.  Starting in December, Collection Services staff will begin ordering new 

materials in anticipation of a tentative March or April launch date. Our direction for the new collection 

will focus on bestselling titles similar to the Lucky Day collection, replacing popular children’s books 

with new copies, purchasing more graphic novels and purchasing more titles for the Juvenile Spanish 

section.  We will also be buying more video games, movie Binge Boxes and VOX Readalong picture 

books.  Furthermore, we’ll be working to launch and promote new formats for the Bookmobile, including 

a set of Outreach Rokus and Memory Kits.  To prepare for the influx of new Outreach materials and 

ensure space is available, the amount of weeding will also increase starting in December. 

 

Vinyl Records Task Force 

After a few months of preliminary discussions and testing, it was determined that offering a small, 

specialty collection of vinyl records and portable record players would be feasible. The Collection Usage 

Committee formed an official Vinyl Records Task Force to implement this new collection. I will be 

serving as Chair and task force members include Anne Burkiewicz (Circulation), Patrick Clemens 

(Studio 300) and Brian Smallwood (ATSD).  The team is currently working on circulation procedures, 

curating a starter collection list of albums to purchase and brainstorming ways to process the vinyl 

records.  We are hoping to launch this collection in Spring or early Summer of 2021. 

 



New Video Games for PS5 and XBOX SERIES X 

We began purchasing video games for two brand new 

consoles – the highly anticipated PS5 and XBOX 

Series X.  We have almost 30 games available or on 

order and plan to purchase more as they are made 

available.  Titles we currently own include Call of 

Duty: Black Ops Cold War, NBA 2K21, Mortal 

Kombat 11: Ultimate, and Assassin’s Creed: Valhalla.  

Adult Video Games increased in circulation by 12% 

compared to last November. 

 

 

Adult Graphic Novels Recataloging 

Collection Services just completed recataloging over 1,000 

graphic novels from the Teen collection to the Adult 

Graphic Novel section.  These materials include classic 

superheroes series like Batman and Spiderman that now 

have a much larger fan base in Adults rather than Teens.  As 

a result, our Adult Graphic Novels have increased in 

circulation 13% since last November. 

 

 

Collection Services Staff Updates 

From Brett Luminais, Children’s Collection Librarian 

My primary focus in the beginning of November was 

finishing up the Equity in Action: Building Diverse 

Collections course which began at the end of October. I 

created a process for auditing juvenile print material orders 

for diversity. With guidance from instructors, as well as 

historical and census research, on Bolingbrook, I created a 

set of goals to guide ordering to make our collection 

equitable and more representative of the community. Using 

this system, nearly 450 titles for our juvenile collection have already been audited. Order audits for 

diversity will be an ongoing process that I am structuring into my regular ordering workflow. I have 

resumed work on adding new kits into the collection. Four new kits have been processed and delivered to 

our catalogers, putting us on track to add five additional new kits by the end of December, two of which 

are nearly ready to be delivered to the catalogers. I began training in ILL policy and procedure with 

Christine in November. Beginning in 2021, I will be responsible for providing ILL coverage at least one 

day each month and any time additional support is needed. Providing ongoing and regular coverage 

allows me to stay up-to-date with ILL and maintain these skills so that I can effectively and seamlessly 

cover ILL in the case of Christine’s absence.  

 

From Lynnette Hopwood, Adult Collection Librarian 

I completed my class on Equity and Diversity in Action. I found it interesting and it gave me many things 

to think about. Some of the ideas that I am going to implement concerns our displays. I am going to make 

sure that our selections include authors and characters of diverse backgrounds. Additionally another point 

that I thought was interesting was that just because LGBTQIAP month is June, we should have displays 

several times a year, not just in June. This goes for all diverse groups. I am also working with my staff to 

create displays that make it easier for patrons to find materials. We created a display of our new music 



and we had 140 items checked out in the month of November. I am also working on creating new genres 

for our patrons to find favorite authors as well discover new authors. We are finishing creating a romance 

area, and we will soon be working on labeling and moving cozy mysteries to a separate section of the 

shelves. Other areas we will be concentrating on will be creating a thriller section as well as a short 

stories collection. After fiction is finished, we are looking to create a test prep area in the nonfiction. 

 

 

From Chris Castle, Cataloging Supervisor 

A new cataloger was hired this month. Karina Andrus comes to us with her MLIS from Dominican 

University where she focused her studies on cataloging and metadata. She has prior experience in 

technical, youth, reference, and circulation services departments of public libraries as well as in video 

archives. We are very excited for her to join our team here at Fountaindale. With the hiring of a new 

cataloger, this month, I prepared all of her training materials including creating a training schedule, 

providing training materials like cataloging resources and documentation, and scheduling her for 

orientations and training sessions. When she was hired, I provided a tour of the library’s layout as well as 

the collections it holds. I also acquainted her with her email, the staff intranet, information on the 

network’s shared drive, and the department’s workflow. I have also been introducing her to Polaris, 

OCLC Connexion, and consortium and local cataloging practices. I was invited to the PinTech managers 

meeting this month because several topics were pertinent to cataloging. First, bibliographic information 

for the new video game consoles was discussed, and then that adding series information to video game 

bib records is up to catalogers’ judgment if they think it will help patrons discover the item. I suggested 

and it was approved that if a graphic novel is clearly marked with a volume 1 and it is likely that a 

volume 2 will follow, a multivolume bibliographic record should be made. This prevents recataloging 

later if not originally cataloged with a volume number. At the selectors meeting I was invited to, it was 

decided that Great Courses materials that include DVDs and booklets will be cataloged in the nonfiction 

DVD collection. They will be shelved on top of the adult nonfiction DVD shelves and cataloged with the 

prefix “DVD GREAT” to highlight them from the rest of the collection. An Outreach holiday collection 

is being planned for early next year and will feature HOLIDAY in the call number prefixes of adult and 

juvenile materials. This will highlight holiday-themed materials by being included in their own 

collections instead of interfiled with the rest of the collections. Finally, a short list of terms for a diversity 

controlled vocabulary was discussed and will be added to non-public notes by selectors and catalogers to 

help identify and highlight diverse materials. They will also be receiving a sticker for extra visibility. One 

project I have been working on this month is the recataloging of juvenile-themed Binge Boxes into the 

Juvenile DVD collection from the adult DVD collection. This project is nearly complete. In my 

continuing training in periodicals, Jake walked me through the collection and processing of newspapers. 

 

From Karina Andrus, Cataloger 

I received onboarding information from Noey and Lea on my first week (November 23). I received 

training and orientation from Chris and Christina on department procedures and workflow, stack 

locations, and cataloging process. On Friday, November 27, my supervisors were out of office on 

holiday, so I reviewed the employee handbook and procedure documents on the :S drive, PinTech site, 

and Google Drive. I began training on nonfiction items, and cataloged my first 3 items with some 

oversight and assistance from Chris. 

 

From Jacob Luce, Acquisitions Supervisor 

For the month of November I continued to process invoices and process the various carts of materials for 

our collection provided to me by our Collection Development Librarians. Currently I am working with 

our vendor Midwest Tape to build a processing profile for the Great Courses titles that we will be 

ordering and circulating soon. I am also working with the Cataloging Supervisor and the Adult Collection 

Development Librarian to ensure that we have enough space in the Nonfiction DVD area to 



accommodate these new titles. I have also been tasked with creating new genre labels for our 

#OwnVoices materials. I have some mockups done and have shared them with the appropriate people. So 

far I have received some great feedback and ideas from other staff members on how to improve the 

labels. This is still a work in progress. After some discussion it was decided to move away from utilizing 

book tape to protect our current genre labels and call labels that we affix to our materials. It was decided 

to start using label protectors instead.  I am looking forward to using the label protectors because it will 

make our materials look sleeker and more uniform. Last but not least we have received and processed our 

Christmas Lucky Day materials for our patrons in time for the holidays. 

 

From Christine Jason, Interlibrary Loan Specialist 

I began training Sue and Brett on ILL. That way we have two extra people trained in ILL to 

provide back up in case of vacations and illness. The training is going very well considering that 

we have to keep socially distant. I received 2 journal articles in our ERIC database. We usually 

get the article requests through OCLC which is very easy to obtain. It is a bit trickier in ERIC as 

we do not have full text of every article. With the assistance of a coworker we were able to find 

them for her. She then requested seven more articles. We were able to find them for her as 

well. We emailed her the articles. She was very appreciative and sent a thank you email. 

“Thank you so much I am done for today!! I am applying to a PhD program and needed additional 

articles for support.  I love the library and appreciate everyone’s hard work especially dealing with these 

uncertain times.” 

 

Physical Collection Circulation 

*Sorted Alphabetically by Collection 

 

Collections 

 

Nov 2019 

Circs 

Nov 2020 

Circs 
Change % Change 

Adult Audiobooks 772 445 -327 -42% 

Adult Fiction 4346 4227 -119 -3% 

Adult Graphic Novels 378 429 51 13% 

Adult Nonfiction 3967 4093 126 3% 

Adult Video Games 314 353 39 12% 

Beginning Readers 1587 1913 326 21% 

Interlibrary Loan 302 250 -52 -17% 

Juvenile Audiobooks 436 407 -29 -7% 

Juvenile Fiction 6650 3785 -2865 -43% 

Juvenile Graphic Novels 1635 1195 -440 -27% 

Juvenile Kits 114 54 -60 -53% 

Juvenile Movies & TV 4356 2378 -1978 -45% 

Juvenile Nonfiction 3755 2324 -1431 -38% 

Juvenile Technology & Equipment 162 117 -45 -28% 

Juvenile Video Games 619 572 -47 -8% 

Large Print 590 624 34 6% 

Local Authors 8 14 6 75% 

Local History & Genealogy 0 8 8  



Magazines 639 476 -163 -26% 

Movies & TV 11075 8250 -2825 -26% 

Music 1320 1057 -263 -20% 

On-the-Fly 10 17 7 70% 

Picture Books 7273 6178 -1095 -15% 

Studio 300 2898 666 -2232 -77% 

Technology & Equipment 992 152 -840 -85% 

World Languages Adult 168 164 -4 -2% 

World Languages Juvenile 704 376 -328 -47% 

World Languages Young Adult 9 6 -3 -33% 

Young Adult Audiobooks 66 41 -25 -38% 

Young Adult Fiction 906 931 25 3% 

Young Adult Graphic Novels 622 632 10 2% 

Young Adult Kits 1 25 24 2400% 

Young Adult Nonfiction 238 178 -60 -25% 

Young Adult Technology & Equipment 0 2 2  

Young Adult Video Games 758 536 -222 -29% 

TOTALS 57670 42875 -14795 -26% 

 

 

Circulation by Branch 

Branch 

 

2019 

 

2020 

 

Change 

 

% Change 

 

Building 51,648 41105 -10543 -20.41% 

Outreach 4751 1103 -3648 -76.78% 

Studio 300 2898 667 -2231 -76.98% 

Digital 8444 8362 -82 -0.97% 

Totals 67741 51237 -16504 -24.36% 

 

 

Battle of the AV Formats 

Format Circs  Format Circs 

Blu-ray 2,268 vs. DVD 8,492 

CD Audiobook 426 vs. Playaway Audiobook 267 

 

 

Special Collections 

 Collection Circs 

Lucky Day 946 

Hotspots 47 

Roku Media Players 62 

Laptops 88 

STEAMboxes 81 



Digital Collection Usage 

Digital Platform 

 

Nov 2019 

 

Nov 2020 

 

Change 

 

% Changed 

 

Hoopla 1444 1718 274 18.98% 

Freegal Music Streaming 863 1020 157 18.19% 

Rbdigital eMags 594 720 126 21.21% 

cloudLibrary Shared 481 557 76 15.80% 

eRead Illinois eBooks 145 165 20 13.79% 

Kanopy 168 181 13 7.74% 

OverDrive eBooks 1921 1930 9 0.47% 

eRead Illinois eAudio 107 77 -30 -28.04% 

cloudLibrary eAudio 150 120 -30 -20.00% 

Rbdigital eAudio 62 0 -62 -100.00% 

Rbdigital Entertainment 67 0 -67 -100.00% 

Freegal Music Downloads 405 335 -70 -17.28% 

PressReader 196 52 -144 -73.47% 

OverDrive eAudio 1494 1344 -150 -10.04% 

cloudLibrary eBooks 347 143 -204 -58.79% 

Totals 8444 8362 -82 -0.97% 

 

 

 

 

For November, digital circulation was 16% of the library’s total circulation. 

3274

242

820
720

1355

1718

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

OverDrive eRead Illinois Cloud Library RBdigital eMags Freegal Music Hoopla

Digital Circulation By Platform



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Digital Content Fast Facts  

Overdrive 

 There were 4,938 unique Pinnacle users, which is a 6.3% growth from last November.  Of 

those, Fountaindale had 700 unique users in the month. 

 eBooks accounted for 62.4% of checkouts, while eAudio accounted for 37.6% 

 Checkouts by Audience: Adults: 87.6%; Young Adults: 6.3%; Juvenile: 6.1% 

 During the month, PLC yielded 21,963 total checkouts; of those, 3,274 circs were from 

Fountaindale patrons. 

 

eRead Illinois/Axis 360 

 There were 85 active users for the month, 23 of which are new users 

 During the month, there were 165 eBook circs and 77 eAudio circs 

 eBooks accounted for 68% of checkouts, while eAudio accounted for 32%. 

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20

Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20

Kanopy 168 173 136 142 185 261 297 203 183 155 133 177 181

PressReader 196 44 34 167 596 354 318 127 106 105 83 103 52

Hoopla 1444 1390 1620 1459 1766 1969 2147 1886 1925 1811 1574 1694 1718

Freegal Music 1268 1010 1126 1008 1247 1789 1377 1162 1153 990 1076 925 1355

RBDigital Entertainment 67 70 85 20 82 77 83 82 0 0 0 0 0

RBdigital eMags 594 416 401 653 632 652 661 535 655 646 678 732 720

RB Digital eAudio 62 98 107 86 115 92 169 106 177 72 17 0 0

Cloud Library 978 950 977 918 1017 1301 1429 1511 1275 1003 356 643 820

eRead Illinois 252 261 350 270 322 348 364 400 336 290 300 252 242

OverDrive 3415 3101 3647 3359 3489 3520 3630 3686 3766 3715 3483 3435 3274

Digital Collection Circulation Over the Year



Hoopla 

 The top titles were The Librarians, Season 4, Powerpuff Girls, Season 1, Murdoch Mysteries 

Seasons 5 and 6 (All TV Shows) 

 There were 1,718 circs borrowed by 379 patrons 

 There were 379 unique patrons and 31 new patrons in the month 

 Audiobooks were the most borrowed format, accounting for 41% of all circs, followed by 

eBooks with 27%, Movies/TV with 19% 

 Adult Fiction was the most borrowed category, accounting for 62% of all circs, followed by 

Adult Non-Fiction with 19% and Juvenile Fiction with 14%. 

 

Kanopy 

 The most popular videos were Setting Therapeutic Goals, Cognitive Behavior Foundations,  

My Old Lady 

 Patrons played 181 distinct video titles and 497 video plays 

 There were 62 active users and a total of 275 user accounts 

 

Freegal 

 This month yielded 1,020 songs streamed and 335 music downloads 

 Top streaming music genres: Pop, Rock, Classical, Holiday 

 Top downloaded music genres: Rock, Holiday, Pop 

 

Physical Items Added and Withdrawn 

 

Items 

 

Nov 2020 

Added 

Nov 2020 

Withdrawn 

Adult Audiobooks 26 0 

Adult Fiction 536 985 

Adult Graphic Novels 7 1 

Adult Nonfiction 435 172 

Adult Video Games 16 102 

Beginning Readers 67 2 

Juvenile Audiobooks 60 5 

Juvenile Fiction 80 105 

Juvenile Graphic Novels 87 12 

Juvenile Kits 12 0 

Juvenile Movies & TV 92 93 

Juvenile Nonfiction 151 396 

Juvenile Technology & Equipment 20 0 

Juvenile Video Games 9 30 

Large Print 92 90 

Local Authors 2 0 

Local History & Genealogy 1 0 

Magazines 243 2 

Movies & TV 788 1324 

Music 81 1342 



Picture Books 244 10 

Studio 300 27 0 

Technology & Equipment 3 0 

World Languages Adult 3 0 

World Languages Juvenile 39 19 

World Languages Young Adult 0 0 

Young Adult Audiobooks 0 0 

Young Adult Fiction 146 151 

Young Adult Nonfiction 15 1 

Young Adult Technology & Equipment 0 0 

Young Adult Video Games 7 224 

TOTALS 

3303 

Added 

5129 

Withdrawn 

 

Acquisitions & Processing 

 Purchase Orders created and released: 102 

 Invoices Paid: 218 

 Boxes Received and Opened: 79 

 Items Repaired: 513 

 

Cataloging 

 Items Cataloged and made available: 3303 

 Original bibliographic records created: 10 

 Magazines processed: 239 

 

 

Interlibrary Loan 

262 Items Received for our patrons 

 223 items from IL libraries 

 39 items from out of state libraries 

178 Items Sent out to other libraries 

 69 to IL libraries 

 104 to out of state libraries 

 5 to XYZ libraries 

277 Items requested by our patrons this month 

 258 submitted in OCLC 

 7 items were too new to request 

 12 were available in Pinnacle 

 3 were out of country only 

258 Items requested by OCLC libraries this month 

 113 from IL libraries  

 145 from out of state libraries 

 0 out of country 



CHQ Statistics 

CHQ Status Adult Young Adult Juvenile Totals 

Dead - Items that have 

not circulated in 2 years 
CHQ Recommendation: 

less than 10% 

11,101 

Down 352 Items 

8.28% 

1,038 

Up 146 Items 

8.01% 

5,546 

Up 350 Items 

6.90% 

17,333 

Up 144 Items 

7.66% 

Collection Check - 

Anything that has not 

circulated in 4 years 

CHQ Recommendation: 

less than 10% 

234 

Up 33 Items 

2.38% 

17 

Stayed the same 

8.10% 

170 

Up 16 Items 

7.69% 

954  

Up 49 Items 

4.82% 

Grubby - Items that have 

circulated 75 times or more 

CHQ Recommendation: 

less than 10% 

10,101 

Down 349 Items 

8.19% 

558 

Down 66 Items 

3.78% 

10,069 

Up 101 Items 

9.01% 

20,728 

Down 314 Items 

8.3% 

DOA 

Items that have been added 

to the collection in the last 

6 months, and only 

circulated 1 or less times in 

the last 18 months. 

US average 16%  

4,589 

Up 907 Items 

28.94% 

 

514 

Down 1 Item 

37.44% 

1,696 

Up 17 Items 

21.3% 

6,799 

Up 923 Items 

26.99% 

Turnover 

Nov 26, 2019 to       

Nov 23, 2020 

2.59 1.60 1.89 2.23 

 

 

 

NextReads Newsletters 

Subscribers 0 New Subscribers 0 Unsubscribed 6 Bounced 

Newsletters   280 Items Clicked 
Open 

 November New 
Movies issue had 
the highest Total 
clicks (184) 

23.5% Mobile Views 76.5% Desktop Views 

Emails  986 Sent 

 37% opened 

Unique Opens – 37.35% 

Unique Views – 0.92% 

Highest Unique Opens 

– November 8, 

November 15, 

November 22, New 

York Times Bestselling 

Fiction (26) 



Displays 
 

1st Floor 
Lobby Cart: Christmas – 12 
Lobby Cart: Conversations – 98 
Lobby Tree: Staff Picks – 84 
Homeschool – 55 
Veteran’s Day – 33 
 

2nd Floor 
Christmas – 127 
Binge Boxes – 199 
New Music – 140 
 

3rd Floor 
Conversations – 32 
Who’s Your Hero – 1 
Comfort Foods – 43  
3rd Floor Desk Table – 14 
 

Children’s 

 Christmas DVDs – 224 

 Travel the World from home – 15 

 Step into reading – 90 

 Picture Book Month – 100 

 Thanksgiving – 85 

 Tis the Seasoning – 6 

 Horror Juvenile Fiction – 11 

 Christmas, Hanukkah, Kwanzaa – 23 

 

            

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Holiday Movies 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Children’s Binge Boxes 

 

 

 

 

 



Communications (Melissa Bradley) 
 
Communications Highlights 
 

 Our Google Ads had 15,577 impressions and 2,307 clicks. 
 

 We released our final Pillar of the Community interview and READ poster in November 
featuring 2019 Senior Citizen of the Year, Judy Bredeweg.  
 

 Melissa and Steven scheduled, wrote/edited and published 23 blog posts. 
 

 Melissa wrote titles, descriptions and tags for 65 YouTube videos. 
o Our YouTube channel gained 41 followers this month.   

 

 Melissa and Steven (with the help of Nancy and Amina) set up automatic library card 
renewals in Patron Point. Adult library cards are now automatically renewed if they meet 
necessary requirements via Patron Point’s Verify software 31 days before their address 
check is due. If they do not meet said requirements, they are automatically sent an email 
letting them know their card is due for an address check and to please come into the 
building before their card expires. 
 

 Steven worked with Nancy and Amina to launch the new self-checkout feature on our 
Communico mobile app. 
 

 Sabrina virtually attended the How Design Live Conference. 
 

 Steven attended Communico’s ‘Making the Most of Your Implementation’ and ‘Boom! 
Zoom is Here’ webinars and three Patron Point practical sessions.  
 

 Melissa attended ALA’s ‘Target Marketing’ webinar, an ILA Marketing Forum 
Roundtable, Patron Point’s ‘Pop-up Ads’ webinar and three Patron Point practical 
sessions.  

 Sabrina quickly created signage communicating Illinois’ COVID-19 mitigation changes. 
She also completed the Yule Ball at Home, CSD travel bags and tween book boxes 
marketing collateral and designed signage for CSD’s Pen Pals and Star of the Month 
programs.  

       



Media 

 The Dong-A Ilbo mentioned us in their story about Dogok Information Culture Library 
Chief Cho Geum-ju who visited our library amongst 300 others.  

 The Patch mentioned us in their coverage of Thanksgiving dinner donations to our Micro 
Pantry.  

 

Social Media Ads 

 Indie Author Day paid event ran November 6–11. It cost $6 and reached 792 people with 
11 engagements . 

 Baig of Tricks 80’s Trivia Night paid event ran November 6–9. It cost $6 and reached 595 
people with 8 event responses.   

 How to Draw Realistic Owls paid event ran November 6–10. It cost $6 and reached 901 
people with 6 event responses . 

 Illinois Storm Chasers paid event ran November 6–10. It cost $6 and reached 1,104 
people with 21 event responses. 

 SQL Learning Circle paid event ran November 6–11. It cost $6 and reached 643 people 
with 6 event responses. 

 Lincoln and Thanksgiving paid event ran November 6–11. It cost $6 and reached 782 
people with 7 event responses. 

 November Cooking Demo paid event ran November 6–12. It cost $6 and reached 572 
people with 15 event responses. 

 Preserve & Share Your Memories paid event ran November 6–12. It cost $6 and 
reached 657 people with 21 event responses.  

 Children’s display cases ad ran November 6–30. It cost $20 and reached 941 people 
with 42 engagements.  

 CloudLibrary ad ran November 16–December 1. It cost $20 and reached 1,562 people 
with 57 post engagements.  

 The Great Thanksgiving Listen paid event ran November 19–27. It cost $10 and reached 
590 people with 5 event responses. 

 

Social Media Metrics  

 Facebook Metrics 
 19 new people liked our page 
 1,065 people viewed our page  
 47,030 people viewed our content (reach) 

 18,151 people saw our content because a friend shared, liked or engaged 
with it  

 1,969 people engaged with our content (clicked, liked, commented or shared)  

https://www.donga.com/en/article/all/20201104/2231304/1/Library-chief-who-visited-300-overseas-libraries-at-her-own-expense
https://patch.com/illinois/bolingbrook/ep/1370511


 Twitter Metrics 
 3 new followers 
 154 page views 
 7,651 tweet impressions 

 

 Instagram Metrics 
 4 new followers 
 307 post likes 
 6,364 people viewed our content (reach) 

 

Email Marketing Metrics  

 27 emails sent (This includes weekly blog roundup emails) 
 186 new subscribers (This includes blog subscribers) 
 Average open rate: 26.30% (industry average is 21.33%)  
 Average click rate: 5.34% (industry average is 2.62%)  

 
 We also sent one email through Patron Point to communicate our COVID-19 Tier 3 

Mitigation changes. 
o Email had 23.1% open rate and 2.1% click rate 

 
 
Finance (Jennie Nguyen) 

 Comptroller Report: Reviewed the report received from our auditors, Brian Zabel & 
Associates.  I have confirmed and corrected some of the information on the Annual 
Financial Report.  This report is required to be submitted to the Illinois Comptroller 
office.  The deadline for filing is December 26th. 

 Insurance Renewal: This month, I began reviewing the insurance renewal quote and 
audit the rate comparison listed on the document.  There was an error on one of the 
rates for last year.  The insurance company was contacted and notified of this inaccuracy 
and of the correction request. 

 Bookmobile Insurance - New:  I had contacted the insurance company for the 
requirements and deadline in order to add the new bookmobile which the Library is 
expecting to arrive in March 2021.  I had reviewed the plans for the current bookmobile 
with Nancy and Tana.  The current bookmobile will remain until the time the Library is 
able to sell it. 

 Staff Development and Training Request form - The Finance team continues to 
update our procedures in order to improve the workflow and internal control process as 
well as minimize paper waste.  The form is now electronically stored as well attached to 
the invoice payment data file.  This will help in terms of the annual audit and FOIA 
requests, if needed. 

 Webpurchasing:  Finance has been in touch with Blackbaud, our software provider, of 
our email notification issues for the Webpurchasing system.  We are working with them 
along with the IT department to resolve the current issue with their recent maintenance 
updates. 

 Publications:  Prepared and provided documents to our local newspaper to meet legal 
publication requirements.  The statement of receipts and disbursements, vendors’ report 



and payroll report were published in the Bugle newspaper November 26th publication 
edition.  

The notice of availability of audit was published in the Bugle newspaper.  This legal 
notice is a new publication requirement which informs the public of the Library’s annual 
audit, auditing firm and location whereby they can view the financial report.  

 Will County Cares Fund - Finance have been scanning and storing  all expenditures 
documents in order to be able to submit for possible additional  reimbursements.  Paul 
had notified us the Library may be able to get more CARES funding.  Documentation is 
set to go. 

 Wintrust Check Duplication Issues -  Through the daily positive pay process, the 
possibility of check duplication was found.  Notification was sent to Wintrust and the 
check payees for confirmation  before they were marked as duplicates.  The group of 
checks were marked as duplicates and sent to the Wintrust fraud department.  Due to an 
error on the part of Wintrust, the original funds were reversed and charged a fee. After 
discussing the problem with Wintrust, the Library was reimbursed by Wintrust for the 
reimbursement of the chargeback fees to the payee along with the reissued check 
amount. 

 Essential Products - Finance continues to monitor the inventory of the essential product 
which includes disinfecting products, masks and gloves on a monthly basis.  This 
ensures the Library maintains a sufficient inventory of the supplies to continue to keep 
our staff and community safe as possible. 

 Prevailing Wage Purchase Order Review - Allyse and I met with Tasos and Paul 
virtually to discuss the updated filing requirements for the Prevailing Wage Act.  Due to 
the webinar attendance by the Finance team and Tasos, we were made aware of the 
new and current filing requirements for the certified payroll reports by our contractors. 
They are now required to file directly on the IDOL certified payroll portal.  The notice on 
the Library’s current prevailing wage purchase order form was updated to reflect the 
change.  The updated form was sent to the attorney for their legal review. 

 iPrime PMA Investment Report - Due to the nature of the iPrime PMA platform, the 
quarterly portfolio would not normally be available.  After discussion with Courtney 
Soesbe, our investment relationship manager with  PMA, she was able to provide the 
necessary quarterly reports for 2020 in record time.  These reports will allow Paul and I 
to review the current status of the Library’s investments.  

 Per Capita Grant Review - Per Paul’s Request, a report was compiled for the 
expenditures processed and paid for the FY2019 per capita funds. 

 FFCRA Tax Credits - Per Lea’s request of the Library’s eligibility for the tax credit, I 
consulted with our auditor and was notified that the majority of the payroll credits are not 
eligible for government entities.  Lea is currently working with Paylocity to update their 
system for the FFCRA issue. 

 Accounting/Reports:  Completed regular monthly financial reports and reconciliations. 

Finance Team:  This month, Allyse and I were able to do some interviewing for an open 
Finance Aide position.  Allyse continues to train Marlen on her Finance Specialist duties.   
She has learned some of the functions of the accounting system, Financial Edge NXT, which 
includes adding and updating vendor information and entering invoices for payment processing. 
 
 
 



Human Resources (Lea Pottle) 
 
Staffing and Recruiting 
Open Positions:   

 Building Security Monitor 
 Finance Aide 
 Studio Services Specialist 

 
New Employees: 

 Bradley Bibbs, Adult and Teen Services Specialist, 11/2 
 Ben Jansen, Adult and Teen Services Specialist, 11/2 
 Sarahit Flores, Circulation Services Aide, 11/9 
 Karina Andrus, Cataloger, 11/23 

 
Promotions: 

 Uriel Cortez, Computer Aide was promoted to Adult and Teen Services Specialist, 11/1 
 Julia Dziadus, Computer Aide was promoted to Adult and Teen Services Specialist, 11/1  

 
Applicant Tracking System - Recruitment 

 Noey and Lea participated in zoom meetings with our representative at Paylocity. 
 Reviewed the recruitment module and editing capabilities. 

 
Payroll and Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) 

 Noey and Lea continue to work with Paylocity so that staff entitled to emergency paid 
sick leave and expanded FMLA are compensated correctly. 

 Track the use of paid time off benefits making sure that the District is compliant with the act. 
 
 
Information Technology (John Matysek) 
 

 During the month of November, 75 new help desk tickets were created by FPLD staff, 
and 84 new or existing tickets were solved by IT staff. 

 Updated Microsoft Windows on all library servers as well as the most popular utility 
software on the patron computers. 

 Updated the underlying VMware vSphere system on the main network server. 

 Met with vendors Dell and ITsavvy to discuss the start of the project to replace the 
library’s main network server and storage infrastructure hardware, and the 
configuration of the involved Dell hardware. 

 Met with vendor ITsavvy multiple times to discuss details and issues relating to the 
project to replace the library’s main network server and storage infrastructure hardware. 

 Changed the configuration of all patron computers to make them unavailable for 
patron usage due to Illinois COVID-19 Tier 3 mitigation guidelines. 

 Met with vendor Malwarebytes to discuss how and why the library uses their software 
to help prevent malware and ransomware on library computers. 

 Along with Randall Hildebrandt, Jose Robles, and Nathan Peddicord, deployed new 
second monitors for patron usage in Studio 300. 

 Worked with vendors ITsavvy and Cisco to troubleshoot and correct a licensing issue 
with the library’s firewall network appliance. 

 Met with vendor Konica Minolta to discuss several maintenance and configuration issues. 



November 2020 District Statistics Population Total 67683

Total Circulation Statistics 51,237 Reading Programs Adult Teen Children Outreach Total Website Visits Total Facebook Likes

Building/Driveup 41,772
Reading Programs 
Offered 0 0 2 0 2 14,858 4,636

Bookmobile 1,103 Reading Members 0 0 371 0 371 Proctoring Total Twitter Followers

Digital 8,362 Summer Reading 0 0 0 0 0 14 879

Collection Databases 1,075
Summer Reading 
Members 0 0 0 0 0 Faxes Sent

Total Instagram 
Followers

Collections Totals Population Served Building Outreach Total 410 1,170

Interlibrary Loan Requests New Physical Items 3,303 Total Visits 17,483 220 18,819 Scans Sent
Total eNews 
Subscribers

Items Received for our Patrons 262 New Cardholders 9,811 0 9,811 6,935 7,240

Items Sent to other Libraries 178 Active Cardholders 29,859 68 29,927 Pages Printed COHS Students Enrolled

% Served All cardholders ** 55,227 Drive through visits 1,116 13,655 6

In-house checkins 
(Not part of total circ) N/A Active cardholders 44.22% Computer and Internet Sessions Monthly Wireless 

SessionsAll cardholders 81.60% Studio 300 Children's Vortex Lab/Commons Chromebooks

88 146 0 1,226 16 10,208

Public Use of Meeting Rooms S300 Audio Booths Studio 300 GCRs S300 Video Suites Meeting Rooms  Study Rooms Free Standing Book Drop Return Totals

Number of events/uses 23 2 14 14 96 Building Front Building Rear Church Ashbury's

Attendance 26 3 17 99 96 36,777 0 752 90

Programs

Programs Adults Programs Teens Mobile App Downloads

Adult/Teen Staff Outreach Staff Studio 300 Staff Total Adult/Teen Staff Outreach Staff Studio 300 Staff Total IOS:  4,328

Numbered offered 3 0 18 21 17 0 0 17 Android: 1,342

Attendance 92 0 56 148 195 0 0 195

Programming hours 4 0 17.5 21.5 20 0 0 20

Programs

Programs Children Passive Progams for Teens/Adults Total Offered

Children's Staff Outreach Staff Studio 300 Staff Total Adult/Teen Staff Outreach Staff Studio 300 Staff Total 225

Numbered offered 5 94 0 99 2 2 0 4 Total Attendance

Attendance 49 2,756 0 2805 84 14 0 98 10,086

Programming Hours 2.5 80 0 82.5 X X 0 X
Total Programming 

Hours

Passive Programs for  Children Cross-Department Programs, Tours and Streaming Media Video Stats for All Ages  388

Children's Staff Outreach Staff Studio 300 Staff Total Building Virtual (passive) Virtual (streaming) Total

Numbered offered 27 1 0 28 2 19 67 88

Attendance 854 30 0 884 1,558 19 5,361 6,938

Programming hours X X 0 X 18 6 240 264

Questions Studio 300 Circulation ATSD Outreach CSD Other Unique Chat Total

Reference Total 167 36 889 542 803 0 121 2,558
Directional 11 147 782 0 314 0 0 1,254
One on One Assistance 10 192 22 0 26 0 0 250
Comparison to Previous Year This Year % change

*Includes virtual programs
** All cardholders are all patrons in our patron 
database which gets purged monthly to delete 
patrons with expired cards of 4 years or older

Circulation 51,237 67,741 -24.36% Reference Questions 2,558 3,190 -19.81%

Visitors 18,819 33,019 -43.01% Computer Usage 1,476 4,701 -68.60%

Card Holders 29,859 24,268 23.04% Wireless Sessions 10,208 17,658 -42.19%

Room Bookings 149 667 -77.66% Program Attendance* 10,086 7,871 28.14%


	12-17-2020 Agenda
	a. Bills Paid Report – December, 2020
	b. Bills Payable Report – December, 2020
	a. Building
	b. Finance
	c. Strategic
	d. Personnel
	For further information regarding this meeting agenda, please contact:
	Paul Mills, Executive Director | Fountaindale Public Library District
	(630) 685-4157 | pmills@fountaindale.org

	12-17-2020 Agenda Background
	November 2020 Minutes
	EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY
	NEW BUSINESS
	CORRESPONDENCE
	Bills Payable Report – November, 2020
	DIRECTOR'S REPORT – October, 2020




	Merit Increase - Minimum Wage Memo 2020-2021
	Resolution 2020-9 Agreement with Sourcewell
	Sourcewell Membership Agreement Application-Aug2018
	Bolingbrook FY2021 Per Capita Grant Application
	Treasurers Report as of November 30 2020
	Bills Paid Report - December 2020


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


	company_name: 
	By 1: 
	By 2: 
	DATE: 
	Sourcewell 1: 
	Sourcewell 2: 
	DATE_2: 
	company: 
	street: 
	city: 
	state: 
	zip: 
	country: 
	ein: 
	website: 
	first_name: 
	last_name: 
	job_title: 
	job_role: 
	email: 
	phone: 
	org_sub_type_federal: 
	org_sub_type_state: 
	org_sub_type_county: 
	org_sub_type_municipality: 
	org_sub_type_tribal: 
	org_sub_type_township: 
	org_sub_type_special-district: 
	org_sub_type_pre-k: 
	org_sub_type_public-k-12: 
	org_sub_type_private-k-12: 
	org_sub_type_public-higher-ed: 
	org_sub_type_private-higher-ed: 
	org_sub_type_church: 
	referral_advertisement: 
	org_sub_type_medical-facility: 
	org_sub_type_other: 
	referral_colleague-friend: 
	referral_vendor: 
	referral_conference-trade-show: 
	referral_conference-trade-show-detail: 
	referral_search-engine: 


